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NOTICE

Notice is hereby given that the 21st Annual General Meeting of the
Shareholders of SBEC SYSTEMS {INDIA) LIMITED will be held on Monday,
the 27th day of September 2010, at the Exacutive Club, 439 Village
Shahoorpur, P.O. Fatehpur Beri, New Delhi at 2.00 P.M. to transact the
foilowing businesses:

ORDINARY BUSINESS

1. To receive, eonsider and adopt the Audited Balance Sheet as at
31st March 2010, the Profit and Loss Account for the period ended
on that date along with the Direclors’ Report and the Auditor's
Report thereon.

2. To consider and appoint a Director in place of Mr. G.C. Jain, who
retires from the office by rotation, and being eligible offer himself
for re- appointment.

3. To consider and appoint a Director in place of Mr. 8.S. Agarwal,
who retires from the office by rotation, and being eligible offer
himself for re- appointment.

4. To appoint Auditors to hold office from the conclusion of this
Annual General Maeting until the conclusion of next Annual General
Meeting of the Company and to authorize the Board of Directors to
fix their remuneration.

M/s K.K_ Jain & Co., Chartered Accountants {Firm Registration No.
02465N), the retiring Auditors, being sligible, offer themseives for
re-appointment.

SPECIAL BUSINESS -

5. To consider and if thought fit, to pass, with or without
modification(s}, the following resolution as a Special Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT in accordance with the provisions of section
198, 269 & 309 read with Schedule Xt and all other applicable
provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 1956, consent of the
Company be and is hersby accorded for the revision of salary of
Mr. Anil Jain, Manager of the Company w.e.f. 1st October, 2009 as
per detail given below:- -

S.N. Particulars Amount (in Rs.)

1 Basic Salary 17,450 p.m.

2 HRA / Leased Accommodation £0% of the basic salary p.m.
3  Conveyance Allowance 2200 p.m.

4 Reimbursement of Medical

7% of basic salary per month
Expenses '
Bonus / Ex-gratia As per policy of the Company
8.33% basic salary

Provident Fund 12% of the basic salary

5
6 Leave Trave! Assistarce
7
8 1500 p.m.

Special Allowance
Other Terms
1 Gratuity As per policy of the Company

2 Leave Encashment As per policy of the Company

By order of the Board

For SBEC Systems (India) Ltd. ~

Shivani !houdhary
Company Secretary

Pface : New Delhi
Date : 12" August 2010

NOTES:

1. A member entitled to attend and vote at the Annual General
Meeting is entitled to appoint a proxy to attend and vote
on a polf in his/her stead and a proxy need not to be
membet of the company. The instrument appointing proxy
in order to be effective should be duly completed, stamped
and signed and must be deposited at the registered office
of the Company at least 48 hours before the scheduled
time of the meeting.” A blank proxy form is annexed
herewith.

2. The Register of the Members and Share Transter Books of the
Company will remain closed from 20" September, 2010 to 27+
September, 2010 (both days inclusive).

3. An explanatory statement, pursuant to -Section 173(2) of 'the i

Companies Act, 19586, relating to the Special Business to be
transacted at the meeting Is annexed hereto.

4. Members/Proxies are requested to bring Attendance Slips sent
herewith duly filled in, for attending the Meeting.

5. Members desiring any information as regards to accounts are
requested to address their questions to the Company Secretary
at least 7 days before the date of the meeting so that the required
information is made available at the mesting. .

6. Non-Resident Sharehoiders are requested 1o inform immediately
the change in the residential status on return for permanent
settlement.

7. As per the provisions of the Companies Act, 1956, as amended,
facility for making nominations is available to individuals hoiding
shares in the Company. The Nomination can be madg in Form-2B,
which can be obtained from the Share Depariment of the Company.

EXPLANATORY STATEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTION 1 73(2) OF THE
COMPANIES ACT, 1956

ITEM NO. 5

Mr. Anil Jain was appointed as Manager of the Company. He is Cemmerce
Graduate and has experience of mare than 20 years in the field of
Accounts and Finance.

The shareholders in their Annual Generai Meeting held on 25th
September, 2009 had approved payment of basic salary of Rs. 16,000/
- per month plus other perquisites for a period 3 years with effect from
01.06.2009.

Keeping in view the inflationary pressure, cost of Hving, his qualifications
and also the comparative remuneration in the industry, the Remuneration
Committee in their Meeting held on 19" March, 2010 approved -and
recommended to the Board for payment of basic salary of Rs. 17,450/
- per month plus other perquisites to Mr. Anil Jain w.e.f. 1st Cetober
2009. Accordingly, the Board of Directors had approved the payment of
said remuneration subject to your approval.

Since any increase in the remuneration of Manager requires approvai
of the shareholders of the Company by way of a special resolution in
terms of the provisions of section 198, 269 & 309 read with Schedule
Xl of the Companies Act, 1956, therefore, the Board recommends this
resolution to be passed as a special resolution,

‘The term of appointment given in the said resolution may be treated as

an abstract of terms and conditions of appointment of said Manager
under Section 302 of the Companies Act, 19586,

None of the directors of your Company is interested in this resolution.
By order of the Board
For SBEC Systems (India) Ltd.

o~

Shivani éhoudhary
Company Secretary

Place ;: New Delhi
Date : 12" August 2010
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

Dear Shareholders,

Your directors take pleasure in presenting the 21* Annual Report of the
~ompany together with Audited Accounts for the year ended 31 March
201Q0.

FINANCIAL RESULTS

lhe summarised financial resuits of the Company for the Financial year
2009-10 vis-a-vis 2008-09 are as under:-

darticulars Year ended Year ended
31.03.2010 31.03.2009
(Rs. in Lacs) {Rs. in Lacs)
>ales & Other Income 50.00 45,67
[otal Expenditure 45.06 437.38*
Dperating profit / (Loss)
yefore depreciation 4.94 {391.71}
Depreciation 0.11 0.14
Jperating Profit / (Loss)
efore tax 4.82 (391.84)
*rofit / (Loss) after tax 4.08 (391.97)
leserves excluding
evaluation reserves 192.62 192.62

* Including loss on account of fluctuation in foreign exchange amounting
3s. 317.29 lacs.

AANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
JUTLOOK

‘our Company is in the business of supplying equipment and consultancy
ervices to the sugar industry. During the current year, the Company
vas able to get two small consultancy services to sugar industry. The
nanagement is confident to revive more business activities in near
uture depending upon more favorable conditions prevailing in the market
arring unforeseen circumstances. '

NTERNAL CONTROLS AND SYSTEMS

he key features of the internal control system in the company are
iven below:

Assels are adequately maintained and protected against theft,
burglary and other losses.

Transactions are propery recorded and accounted for,

. Accounting records are maintained in compliance with all the
statutory laws and reflect true and fair view.

There are adequate management reporting systems for control
and monitoring of performance.

. Budgetary control system is in place.

. Periodical review of internal controls and systems by the
management and Audit Committee Meeting is being done.

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

During the year under review, the sales and other income stood at Rs
60 Lacs. The net profit of the Company stood at Rs. 4.08 Lacs as
compared to loss of Rs. 391.97 Lacs for the previous year.

HUMAN RESOURCES AND INDUSTRIAL RELATIONS

The company’s human resources philosophy is 10 establish and build a
strong perfoermance and competence driven culture with greater sense
of accountability and responsibility. The effort to rationalize and streamline
the workforce is a continuous process. The industrial relations scenario
remained harmonious throughout the year.

DISCLOSURE RELATING TO SENIOR MANAGEMENT

During the year under review there was no material financial or
commercial transaction where senior management personnel has
personal interest that may have potential conflict with the interest of the
Company at large. The Company has received necessary declarations
from the senior management personnel.

FIXED bEPOSI'I'S

The Company has not accepted any deposits from the Public during the
period under review.

DIRECTORS

In accordance with the provisions of Section 256 of the Companies
Act, 1856 and Article 43 of the Articles of Association of the Company,
Mr. G.C. Jain, Independent & Non- Executive Director and Mr. S.8.
Agarwal Non- Executive Director will retire by rotation at the ensuing
Annual General Meeting and being eligible offers themselves for re-
appointment.

SUBSIDIARY COMPANY AND CONSOLIDATED ACCOUNTS

As required under section 212 of the Companies Act, 1956, the audited
accounts along with the report of the Board of Directors of SBEC
Investments Ltd. (subsidiary company) and Auditor's Report thereon
for the year ended on 31st March 2010, and a statement thereon are
annexed.

LISTING OF SHARES

The Equity Shares of the Company are listed at Bombay, Dethi and Uttar
Pradesh Stock Exchanges. Applications for delisting of Shares are
pending with the Delhi and Uttar Pradesh Stock Exchanges.

AUDITORS

M/s K. K. Jain & Co., Chartered Accountants, (Firm Registration No.
02465N) Statutory Auditors of the Company, hold office until the
conclusion of the ensuing Annual General Meeting and being eligible
offer themselves for re-appointment.

AUDITOR'S REPORT

The notes to accounts referred to in the Auditors Report are self-
explanatory and, therefore, don’t call for any futher comments.

DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT UNDER SECTION.217 OF
THE COMPANIES ACT, 1956

Pursuant to the requirement under section 217(2AA) of the Companies
Act, 1956, the Directors of your company declare as under:
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1.  That in the preparation of the Annual Accounts , the applicable
accounting standards had been followed along with proper
explanation relating to material depariures;

2. That the Company has selected such accounting policies and
applied them consistently and made judgments and estimates that
are reasonable and prudent so as to give true and fair view of
affairs of the Company at the end of the financial year and of the
profit or loss of the company for that period; ’

3. That proper & sufficient care has been taken for maintenance of
adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions
of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and
preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

4. That the Annual Accounts are prepared on going concem basis;
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

A Report on Corporate Governance together with a certificate from
Auditors of the Company, confirming compliance with the conditions of
Corporate Governance as stipulated under Clause 49 of the Listing
Agreement with the Stock Exchanges, are annexed hereto and forms
part of this report.

SECRETARIAL AUDIT

As per the direction of the Securities and Exchange Board of India, the
Secretarial Audit of the Company is being conducted on quarterly basis
by a Practicing Company Secretary. The Secretarial Audit Report
confirms that the Company has complied with all the applicable provisions
of the Companies Act, 1956, Listing Agreement with the Stock
Exchanges, and all the Regulations of Securities and Exchange Board
of India {SEBI) as applicable to the Company.

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES

None of the employees of the company were in receipt of remuneration
of more than the limits prescribed under section 217(2A) of the
Companies Act, 1956 read with the Companies (Particulars of
Employees) Rules, 1975 as amended.

ENERGY CONSERVATION, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND
FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGC

As stipulated under the provisions of section 217 (1) (e) of the Companies
Act, 1956 read with the Companies (Disclosure of Particulars in the
Report of the Board of Directors} Rules, 1988, a statement giving the
required information for the year ended on 31 March 2010, is annexed
hereto and forms part of the Directors’ Report.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

Your Directors fake this opporiunity to express their appreciation and
gratitude to Shareholders, all Business Associates, Employees and
Bankers of the Company for their help and support continuously extended
to the Company.

For & on behalf of the Beard
For SBEC Systems (india) Lid.

Sdf -
Place : New Dethi Vijay K. Modi
Date : 12" August, 2010 Chairman

ANNEXURE TO DIRECTORS’ REPORT

Information required pursuamt to section 217 (1) () of the Companies
Act, 1956, read with Companies (Disclosure of Particulars in the Report
of Directors) Rules, 1988 forming part of the Directors Repont for the
year ended 31st March 2010.

A. CONSERVATION OF ENERGY :
8. TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION:

Not Applicable

The information required to be disclosed under Rule 2 of the previously
mentioned Rules is given hereunder in Form B.

FORM B

Form for disclosure of particulars with respect to Technology Absorplion,
Research and Development (R&D).

Research & Development : Ni
Technology absorption, adaptation and Innovation

1. Etforts, in brief, made towards technology absorption, -
adaptation and innovation.  NIL

2. Benefits derived as a result of the above efforts e.qg.
product improvement, c¢ost reduction, product
development, import substitution, etc. N.A.

3. In case of imported technology (imported during the last
S5 years reckoned from the beginning of the financial year)
following information may be furnished:

(a} Technology Imported : Nil
(b) Year of Import © NA
{¢} Has technology been fully absorbed : NA
(d) I not fully absorbed, areas where this has
- not taken place, reasons therecf and future
plans of action i NA

C. FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNING AND QUTGO

i) Activities relating to exports; initiatives taken to increase exports;
development of new export markets for products and services;
and export Plans:

Not applicable as the company has notbeen carrying on or intending
to carry on any export activities in near future,

iy . (Rs. in Lacs)
Current Previous

Year Year

Total Foreign Exchange Used _Nil Nil
Tatal Foreign Exchange Earned Nil Nil

For & on behalf of the Board
For SBEC Systems {India) Ltd.

Sdf—
Vijay lj Modi

Chairman

Place : New Dalhi
Date : 12" August, 2010
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REPORT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
COMPANY'S PHILOSOPHY ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

At SBEC Systems (India) Limited, Corporate Governance is an integral part of the Company’s values, ethics, business practices and norms.
Towards this, the company consistently evaluates and defines its management practices aimed at anhancing its commitment and delivery of the
basic tenets of the Corporate Governance.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Composition of the Board of Directors and other details as on 31.03.2010 is as under:

Sl.  Name of the Category of No. of No. of Committee GCommittee Attendance
No. Directors Director Board Other Member- Chairman- at Last
Meetings Director- ships(**) ships(**) AGM
Attended ships(*) (Excluding (Excluding
SBEC Systems SBEC Systems
{India} Lid.) (India} Ltd.)
1 M. Vijay K. Modi Chairman and 4 1 N NI " Present
Non-Executive Director
2 Mr. G.C. Jain Non Executive & 4 5 1 4 Present
IndependentDirector
3 Mr.8.8. Agarwal Non Executive Dirsctor 4 3 Ni Nl Present
4 Dr. Anupam Bansal ) Non Executive & 4 IN&t Ni Nl Not Present
independentDirector
5 Mr. Norland L.C. Suzor Non-Executive Director Nl 2 Ni ’ Ml Not Present
6. Mr.B.K, Luthra Alternate to 4 2 Nil Nil Present

Mr. Norland L.C. Suzor N

* Directorship in companies registered under the Companies Act, 1956 excluding Directorships in private limited companies, companies covered
under Section 25 of the Companies Act and Alternate Directorships.

{*") Inciudes only Specified Committees i.e. Audit Committee and Shareholders Grievance Committee
Four Board Meetings were held during the year under review on 1% June 2009, 24" August 2009, 237 December 2009 and 19" March 2010.
INFORMATION REGARDING RE- APPOINMENT OF DIRECTORS

Mr. G.C. Jain, Director, retires by rotation and being eligible offers himself for re-appointment. Mr. G.C. Jain is Independent and Non Executive
Director of the Company. He is fellow member of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India and Law Graduate from Rajasthan University. He
has more than 45 years of vast experience in field of finance, taxation and corporate laws matters. He is on the Board of SBEC Sugar Ltd, SBEC
Bicenergy Ltd, Bihar Sponge Iron Ltd. and Own Investment (India} Ltd. He does not hold any share in the Company.

Mr. 5.5. Agarwal, Director, retires by rotation and being eligible offers himself for re-appointment. Mr. S.S. Agarwal is Non Executive Director of
the Company. He is Graduate in Science and Law. He has more then 45 years of vast experience in finance and administration. He is on the
Board of SBEC Bioenergy Ltd., SBEC investment Ltd., and Modi Gourmet Ltd. He does not hold any Shares in the Company.

CODE OF CONDUCT FOR BOARD MEMBERS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Pursuant to Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement, the Board of Directors in their meeting held on 14" December 2005, have adopted a Code of
Conduct for Board Members and Senior Management personnel.
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The Company has received affirmation of Compliance with the Code from all the Directors and Senior Management personnel for the tinancia
year ended 31% March 2010.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The functioning and terms of reference of the Audit Committes are as prescribed under Section 2924 of the Companies Act,. 1956 and the Listi
Agreement with the Stock Exchanges including their role, powers and duties, review of information, quorum for meeting and frequency
meeting. The Committee is responsible for effective supervision of the financial reporting process, ensuring financial, accounting and operatir
controls and ensuring compliance with established policies and procedures. Audit Committee also determines adequacy and effectiveness
internal control. It identifies, defines and categorizes all the risks that the company faces,

The Company has an Audit Committee comprising of three Non Executive Directors, two third of whom are Independent Directors. The Atk
Committes comprises of Mr. G. C. Jain as the Chairman, Mr. Anupam Bansal and Mr. §. 5. Agarwal as its members. The Company Secretary of th
Company acts as the Secretary of the Audit Committee. All Members of the Audit Committee are financially literate and two membérs, including th
Chairman of the Committes have accounting and financial management expertise,

Five Meetings of the Audit Committee were heid during the year under review on 25t April 2009, 30™ July 2009, 241 August 2009, 28" Octobe
2009 and 29* January, 2010. Attendance in the above meetings is as foflows:

Name of Director i No. of Meetings Held No. of Meetings Attended
Mr. G C. Jain 5 5
Mr. Anupam Bénsal ) 5 5
Mr. 8. S. Agarwal 5 - 5

SHARHOLDERS’ GRIEVANCE COMMFTTEE

The Shareholders’ Grievance Committee comprises of Mr. Vijay K. Modi as the Chairman and Mr. 5. 8. Agarwal as the other members. The
Company Secretary of the Company acts as the Compliance Officer of the Committee.

The functioning and terms of reference of the Committee is as prescribed under and in due compliance with the Listing Agreement with the Stock
Exchanges with particular refersnce to complaints of sharehoiders relating to non - receipt of Annual Report, non ~ receipt of Share Certificates stc.

3 shareholders’ investors’ complaints, received directly from them or through SEBI Stock Exchanges and other authorities, were replied and
redressed by the company to the satisfaction of the shareholders and none remained unresolved at the end of the year under review.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee review the Company’s policies on specific remuneration packages for Executives Directors/ Managers and
rececmmend the same to the Board.

The Remuneration Committee consists of two Non Executive Directors. Mr. Vijay Kumar Modi, is the Chairman of the Committee'and Mr. 8. 8.
Agarwal is the other member.

During the year, the Committes met once on 19t March 2010 for the revision of the remuneration of Mr. Anil Jain, Manager of the Company. All the
members were present at this meeting.

The Company does not pay any remuneration to the Non — Executive Directors.
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ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING:

Location and time of the last three Annual General Meetings:-

Year Location Date Time Special Resolution

Passed (Yes/No)

2009 Executive Club, 439, Village September 25, 2009 2.00 P.M. Yes

Shahoorpur, P.O. Fatehpur Beri,
New Delhi. )

2008 Executive Club, 439, Village September 29, 2008 2.00 P.M. No
Shahoorpur, P.O. Fatehpur Beri,
New Dethi.

2007 Executive Club, 439, Village September 27, 2007 2.30 P.M. No
Shahoorpur, P.O. Fatehpur Beri,
New Delhi.

POSTAL BALLOT:

No resolution requiring a postal ballot was proposed at the last Annual General Meeting of the Members.
No resolution which requires approval of Members by postal baflot is being propased at the ensuing Annual General Meeting.
DISCLOSURES:

During the year under review, the company had no materially significant related party transactions as envisaged under the Corporate Governance
Code that may have potential conflict with the interests of the company at large. However, the related party transactions during the year under
review are mentioned in Note 12 to tHe “Notes to Accounts”.

There has been no non compliance, penalties/ strictures imposed on the Company by Stock Exchange(s) or SEBI or any other statutory authority,
on any matter refated to capital markets during the last three years.

At present, the company does not have any Whistle Blower Policy.

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS IS REPORTED IN THIS ANNUAL REPORT
CEO/ CFO CERTIFICATION ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENT
Pursuant to Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement, the Chairman and the Chief Financial Officer have submitted the desired certificate to the Board

of Directors and the same has been taken on record by the Board of Directors in their meeting held on 12* August, 2010.

MEANS OF COMMUNICATION:

Wide publicity is accorded to the Quarterly, Half-yearly and the Annual Results which are published in widely circulated English daily {Financiél
Express) and a Hindi daily (Hari Bhumi, Jansatta) as is required under the Listing Agresment with the Stock Exchanges. The same are aisc faxed
to the Stock Exchanges where the company is listed.

GENERAL SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION
Annual General Meeting:-

Date : September 27 2010

Time : 2.00 PM.

Venue : Executive Club, 439, Village
Shahoorpur, P.Q. Fatehpur Beri,
New Delhi.

Financial Calendar

The financial year of the Company commences from April 1, and ends on March 31,

Particulars Date

1. Quarter ended 30.06.2010: First fortnight of August, 2010

2. Quarter ended 30.09.2010; - First fortnight of November, 2010
3. Quarter ended 31.12.2010: First fortnight of February, 2011
4. Quarter ended 31.03.2011: First forinight of May, 2011
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Book Closure: 20" September 2010 to 27* September 2010 {both days inclusive) -

Dividend Payment Date

In view of the losses incurred by the Company, no dividend has been recommended by the Board of Directors for the year end_ed 31 March 201t
Listing on Stock Exchanges:

The Equity Shares of the Company are listed on the following Stock Exchanges:-

Stock Exchange : Stock Code
Bombay Stock Exchang;_- Limited 517360

The Uttar Pradesh Stock Exchange Limited* 800135

The Delhi Stock Exchange Limited* 6960

The Company has paid annual listing fees due to abovementioned Stock Exchanges for the year 2010-2011.

* The applications for delisting of the shares of the Company from the Stock Exchanges at Delhi and UP are pending. However, the shares of the
Company will continue to remain listed at the Bombay Stock Exchange, which has a nation wide coverage.

Market Price Data:

The Equity Shares of the Company are lying suspended on the Bombay Stock Exchange Lid. They were last quoted on the Bombay Stoch
Exchange on 6™ September 2001 at Rs, 2.30 per share. The Company is in_process for revocation of suspension of trading. ’

Registrar & Transfer Agents

Beetal Financial & Computer Services (P) Lid.
Beelal house, 3rd Floor, 99 Madangir,

Bshind Local Shopping (fentre.

New Delhi-110062

Ph. No. 011-29961281/82, Fax No. 011-29961284
Email :- beetal @ rediffmail.com

Share Transfer System

The share transter requests sent by sharsholders are manually checked. if the transfer deed and enclosures are valid, the shares arq
transterred within a momh with the approval of the Share Transfer Cornmittee, otherwise abjection memo is sent 1o the transferor with
necessary advice to take the required steps. The process is done within a month of raceipt of request.

Distribution of Shareholdings as on 31% March 2010.

Range Shareholders Shares

No. of Shares Number % of tota! holders Number % of total capitai'
Upto 500 188186 84.30 3081125 30.80
501 — 1000 741 37N 585808 5.90
1001 — 2000 277 1.39 406965 407
2001 - 3000 : 54 0.27 136826 1.37
3001 — 4000 24 0.12 85397 ’ 0.85
4001 — 5000 : 13 0.07 60449 0.60
5001 — 10000 ) 14 0.07 96509 0.94_
Above 10000 15 0.08 5546921 ' 55.47

Total 19954 100.00 10000000 . 100.0¢
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Outstanding GDRs/ ADRs/ Warrants or any Convertible Instruments, conversion date and likely impact on equity
The Company has no outstanding GDRs / ADRs / Warrants or any Convertible Instruments.

Address for Correspondence

All queries of invastors regarding the Company's Shares may be sent at the following address:

SBEC Systems (India) Limited
1400, Modi Tower

98, Nehru Place

New Delhi - 110019

Email: sbecsystem-s@rediﬁmail.com
Nomination Facility

Shareholders desirous of making a nomination in respect of their shareholding in the Company, as permitted under 'Section 109A of the
Companies Act, 1956, are requested to submit to the Company in prescribed Form 2B for this purpose.

AUDITORS’ CERTIFICATE
To,
The Members of SBEC Systems (India) Limited

We have examined the compliance of the conditions of corporate governance by SBEC Systems (India) Limited for
the year ended on 31% March 2010, as stipulated in Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement of the said Company with
Stock Exchanges.

The compliance of conditions of corporate governance is the responsibility of the management. Our examination was.
limited to procedures and implementation thereof, adopted by the Company for ensuring the compliance of the conditions
of the Corporate Governance. It is neither an audit nor expression of an opinion on financial statements of the Company.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to explanations given to us, we centify that the
Company has complied with the Conditions of Corporate Governance as stiputated in the above-mentioned Listing
Agreement.

We state that no investor grievance is pending for period extending more than one month against the Company as per
records maintained by the Shareholders’ Grievance Committee.

We further state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to future viability of the Company nor efficiency and
effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

For K. K. JAIN & COMPANY
Chartered Accountants,
Firm Req. No.02465N

Sd]-
(R. K. MITTAL)
Place : New Delhi ' : (PARTNER)
Date :12.08.2010 , Membership No. 95459
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AUDITORS’ REPORT 7
TO THE MEMBERS OF SBEC SYSTEMS (INDIA) LIMITED

We have audited the attached Balance Sheet of SBEC Systems (India)
Limited as at 31= March, 2010and
the Cash Flow Statement for the year ended on that date annexed
thereto. These financial statements are the responsibility of the
Company’s Management. Qur responsibility is to express an cpinion on
these financial statements, based on our audit.

1. We conducted our audit in accordance with the auditing standards
genorally accepted in India. Those standards require that we plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement,
An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting
the amounts and disctosures in the financial statements. An audit
also includes assessing the accounting principles used and
significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating
the overall financia) statement presentation. We believe that our
audit provides a reasonable basis for aur opinion.

2. Asrequired by the Companies Auditor’s Report Order, 2003, issued
by the Company Law Board in terms of Section 227(4A) of the
Companies Act, 1956, we Annex hereto a statement on the matters
specified In paragraphs 4 & 5 of the said Orders.

3. Further to our comments in the Annexure, referred to above, we
report that; :

i We have obtained all the information and explanations, which, to
the best of our knowledge and belief, were necessary for the
purposes of our audit;

ii.  In our opinicn, Proper books of accounts ag required by Law,
have been kept by the Company so far ag appears from our
examination of the books of the Company,

i The Balance Sheet, Profit & Loss Account and Cash Flow
Statement, dealt with by this Report, are in agreement with the
books of account of the Company.

¥ In our opinion, the Balance Sheet, Profit & Loss Account and Cash
Flow Statement dealt with by this report comply with the applicable
Accounting Standards, referred to in Sub-section (3C) of Section
211 of the Companies Act, 1856 and Companies {Accounting
Standard) Ruie 208, issued by the central government in exercise
of the power conferred under sub section (1) (a) of section 642
of the Companies Act, 1956 1o the extent applicable except :

A) Accounting Standard—13 “Accounting for Investments”

referred note no B-08 of scheduie no. 12

B.) Accounting Standard - 11
foreign exchange rate”

schedule no 12,

“The Effect of change in
referred note no.B- 09 of

v Based on the declaration made by the directors of the company
and the information and explanations given 1o us, none of tha
Directors is, as at 31 -03.2010, prima-facie disqualified from being
appointed as a director in terms  of clause (g) of Sub-section (1}
of Section 274 of the Companies Act, 1856..

10

also the Profit & Loss Account and-

—

vi  In our opinion and to the best of our information ang according
the explanations given to us the said Balance Shest, Profit g
Loss Account and Cash Flow Statement read with the Sched
and Notes thereon specifically note no. B-8 regarding Gol
concern basis and subject to the consequential impact on 1
result for the period of Note No B (5) regarding non-provisi
of expenses ralated to deputation charges of forei
techniclans , Note No B(?) regarding Non provision
Interest on foreign currency loan, Note No. B (8) regardi
non reversal of diminution of current investments aj
Note No. B (9) regarding non provision of exchange ra
fluctuation of foreign liabitities giva the information requif
by the Companies Act, 19586, in the manners so required and.
true and iair view:-

(a) In the case of the Balance Sheet of the Btate of affairs

of th
Company as at 31 March, 2010 and )

in the case of the Profit & Loss Account of the Profit for the ye£
ended on that date.

{b)

{(c) In the case of the cash flow statement, of the cash flows for thy

year ended on that date,

:

For K. K. JAIN & COMPANY
Chartered Aocoun!antg
Firm Reg. No.024558

$3)-
(R. K. MITTAL
{PARTNER]
Msmbership No. 95458

Annexure referred to in paragraph 2 of our Report of even date
to the Member of SBEC SYSTEMS (INDJIA) LIMITED on the
accounts as at and for the year ended 31st March, 2010

Place : New Deihi
Date :12.08.2010

1. {(a} The company has maintained
particulars including quantitative
assets,

proper records showing full
details and situation of fixed

{b) As explained to us, the fixed assets have been physically
verified by the Mmanagement during the year in a phased
periodical manner, which in our apinion is reasonable having
regard to the size of the company and nature of its assets, No
material discrepancies betwsen the book records and the
physical inventory were noticed in respect of the assets
physically verified.

(¢} in our opinicn, the company has not disposed of substantial
part of fixed assets during the year and the going concern |

status of the company is not affected.

2. (a) Inventories have been physically verified by the managemant 7

at reasonable intervals during the year,

(b} In our opinion, the procedure of physical verification of inventory
followed by the management is reasonable and adequate in |

relation to the size of the company and the nature of its business,
(c)

On the basis of our examination of records of inventory j
produced to us, in our opinion, the company has maintainad ]

proper racords of inventories. There were no material
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5 (a)

(b)

8. ()

(ii)

(i}

discrepancies noticed on physical verification of inventory as
compared to the book record.

The company has not taken/granted any loan, secured or
unsecured, from companies, firms or other parties listed in the
register maintained under Section 301 of the Companies Act,
1956.

In our opinion and according 1o the information and explanations
given to us, there are adequate internal control procedures
commensurate with the size of the company and the nature of
its business with regard to purchase of inventory and fixed
assets and for the sale of goods. During the course of our
audit, no major weakness has been noticad in the internal control
in respect of these areas.

According 10 the information and explanations given to us, we
are of the opinion that the transactions that need ¢ be entered
into the register maintained under section 301 have been so
entered.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations
given to us the transactions made in pursuance of contracts or
arrangements entered in the register maintained under section
301 of the Companies Act, 1956 and exceeding the valus of
Rupees five Lakhs in respect of any party during the year have
been made at prices, which are reasonable, having regard to
the prevailing market prices at the relevant time.

The company has not accepted any deposits from the pubilc.

In our opinion , the company has an internal audit system
commensurate with the size and nature of its business..

We are informed that the provisions of Section 209(1)(d) of the
Companies Act, 1956 relating to the maintenance of cost records
are not applicable to the Company.

Undisputed statutory dues including Prevident Fund, Investor
Education & Protection fund, Employees State insurance, income
Tax, Sales Tax, Weaith Tax, Service Tax, Custom Duty, Excise
Duty, Cess have generally been regularly deposited with the
appropriate authorities.,

According to the information and explanations given to us, no
undisputed ameunts payable in respect of Provident Fund,
Investor Education and Protection Fund, Employee State
Insurance,Income-Tax, Salas-Tax, Wealth Tax, Service Tax,
Custom Duty, Excise Duty and Cess were outstanding at the
year end for a period of more than six months from the date
they became payabla.

According 1o the information and explanation given to us, there
are no dues of income Tax, Custom Duty, Wealth Tax, service
Tax, Excise Duty, Sales Tax and Cess which have not been
deposited on account of any dispute except the Trade Tax
dues of Rs. 2.55 lakh under U P Trade Tax Act for which an
appeal is pending befora the Assistant Commissioner — Trade
Tax.

_10.

1.

12

13.

14.

15.

16.

17.

18.

18.

20.

21,

The Company's accumulated iosses at the end of the financial
year are more than fifty percent of its net worth. The Company
has not incurred cash loss during the year.In the immediately
preceeding financial year the company has incurred cash losses.

Based on our audit procedures and as per the information and
explanation given by the management we are of the opinion that
the company has not taken any loans from any financial institutions,
banks or debenture holders and hence no default on repayment
of the same.

According to the information and explanations given to us and
based on the documents and records produced to us the company
has not granted any loans and advances on the basis of security
by way of pledge of shares, debentures and other securities.

The provisions of clause 4 (xiii) of the Companies (Audior's Report)
Order, 2003 are not applicable 10 the company.

The company is not dealing or trading in shares, securities,
debentures and other investments.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company has not given any guarantee for loan taken by othe
from banks or financial institutions. ’

The company has not obtained any term loan during the year
ended 31* March, 2010.

According to the informaticn and explanations given to us and on
an overall examination of the Balance Sheet and Cash Flow

. Statement of the company, we report that no funds raised on

short-term basis have been used for long-term investments.

The company has not made any preferential allotment of shares
to parties or companies covered in the register maintained under
section 301 of the Companies Act, 1956, during the year.

No debenlure were issued by the company. Therefore, no -
securities have been created.

The company has not raised any money by a public issue during
the year.

Based upon the audit procedures performed for the purpose of
reporting trua and fair view of the financial statements and as per
the information and explanations given by the management, we
report that no fraud on or by the company has been noticed or
rapoited during the course of our audit.

For K. K. JAIN & COMPANY,
Chartered Accountants,
Firm Reg. No.02465N

Sdj-
{R. K. MITTAL)

Place : New Dethi {PARTNER}

Data

1 12.08.2010 Membership No. 95459
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BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31.03.2010

As at : As at

Schedules
31.03.2010 31.03.2009
(Rs.) (Rs.)
{ SOURCES OF FUNDS
1 SHAREHOLDERS FUNDS
a) Share Capital 1 99,959,000 9,959,000
b) Reservesand Surplus 2 19,261,774 16,261,774
119,220,774 T 119220774
2 LOANFUNDS 3 _
Unsecured Loans 137,409,386 160,543,679
137,409,386 160,543,679
TOTAL 256,630,160 279,764,453
H APPLICATION OF FUNDS ‘
1 FIXEDASSETS 4
Gross Block 704,269 704,269
Less: Depreciation 649,701 638,291
Net Block 54,568 65,978
2  INVESTMENTS 5 82,181,343 82,181,343
3  CURRENTASSETS, LOANS & ADVANCES &
a) Inventories - -
b} Sundry Debtors 1,091,617 2,460,859
¢) - Cash & Bank Balances 684,528 - . 1,067,150
d) Loans & Advances 1,119,045 8,679,871
2,895,190 12,207,880
Less : Current Lizbilities and Provisions 7
a) CurentLiabilities 28,264,465 14,858,499
b) Provisicns 8,575 12,000
T 28273,040 T 14,870,499
Net Current Assets (25,377,850} (2,662,619)
4  PROFIT&LOSS ACCOUNT 199,772,099 200,179,751
TOTAL 256,630,160 279,764,453
AGCOUNTING POLICIES AND
NOTES TO ACCOUNTS 12
Schedules 1 to 12 form an integral part of Accounts.
In terms of our attached report of even date :
' gdf- Sdf — Sdf- SAA’
for K. K. JAIN & CO. Vijay K Modi 5.8. Agarwal G.C. Jain ) B.K. Luthra
Chartered Accountanis Director Director Director Director
Firm Reg. No. 02465N
$d}- - - S4f -
R.K. Mittal Shivani Choudhary : Anil Jain
Partner Company Secretary Chief Financial Officer

Membership No. : 95458

Place : New Delhi
Date : 12th August, 2010
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PROFIT & LOSS ACCOUNT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31.03.2010

Schedules For the year For the year
ended 31.03.2010 ended 31.03.2008
T (Rs) T )
I INCOME
Tumover 5,000,000 2,330,000
Other Income 8 | - 2,237,410
TOTAL 5,000,000 4,567,410
H. = BEXPENDITURE
Operating Expenses 2,500,000 | -
Payments to & Provision for Employees 9 665,259 51 3,480
' Administrative & Selling Expenses 10 677,584 1,330,742
Interest & Financial Charges 11 663,604 32962297
Proviéion for Dimuniation of }nvesiment - _ 8,931,924
TOTAL 4,506,447 43,738,413
Profit/{Loss) before Depreciation 493,553 {39,171,003)
Depreciation 4 11,410 13,922
Profit/(Loss) Before Tax 482,143 (39,184,925)
Income Tax { Adjustment ) - -
Fringe Benefit Tax Paid / Provision - 12,000
Minimum Altemate Tex 74,491 -
Profit / (Loss) After Tax 407 652 - (39,196,925)
Add: Balance brought forward (200,179,751) © (160,082,826)
Balance Carried forward to Balance Sheet (199,772,098) (200,179,751)
Eaming Per Share (Basic & Diluted) 0.04 (3.92)
ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND 12
NOTES TO AGCOUNTS =
Schedules 1 to 12 form an integral part-of Accounts.
In terms of our attached report of even date
for K. K. JAIN & CO. Vija{:g ﬁ odi ‘8., Aggill'v:al -G.c‘.qﬂiﬁ B.K.(:.uth’ra ‘
Chartered Accountants Director Director Director Director
Firm Reg. No. 02465N
H.Ks.',ﬂitt;l Shivani gﬂu’dhary . Anﬁja’u'n
Partner Chief Financiai Officer

Membership No, : 95459

Place : New Delhi
Date: 12th August, 2010

13
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SCHEDULE 1 : SHARE CAPITAL

As at As at
31.03.2010 31.03.2009
. (Rs.} (Rs.)
AUTHORISED
1,50,00,000 Equity Shares (Previous year 1,50,00,000
equity shares) of Rs. 10/- each 150,000,000 150,000,000
Issued & Subscribed )
1,00,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each 100,000,000 100,000,000
{Previous year 1,00,00,000 equity shares)
Paidup -
1,00,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each 100,000,000 100,000,000
({Previous year 1,00,00,000 equity shares) :
Less : Calls in Arrears 41,000 41,000
TOTAL 99,959,000 99,959,000
SCHEDULE 2 : RESERVES & SURPLUS
Share Premium Account 19,261,774 19,261,774
TOTAL 19,261,774 19,261,774
SCHEDULE 3 :LOAN FUNDS
Unsecured Loans
a}  Foreign Currency Loan from Overseas Corporate Body 51,704,369 51,704,369
b)  Short Term Credits
Deffered Payment Credits 51,492,138 ‘ 69,665,070
Cthers Supplier Credits 26,667,188 78,159,326 30,417,367 100,072,437
¢) InterestAccrued & Due on above 7,545,691 - 8,766,873
TOTAL 137,409,386 160,543,679
SCHEDULE 4:FIXED ASSETS .
PARTICULARS GROSS BLOCK DEPRECIATION NETBLOCK |
As at Additens during | Ded./sale . Asat Upto Ded./adjus!. Provided ; Upin -As at As at
01.04.2009 the year  [during the year| 31.03.2010 | 31.03.2009 | duringtheysar|during the year] 31.03.2010] 21.03.2010| 31.03.2009
Plant and Machinery 17,591 - - 17,581 16,510 - 150 16.660 831 1,081
Furniture & Fixture 632,848 - - 632,848 570,642 - 11,260 581,902 50,948 62,206
Office Equipments 53,830 - - 53,830 51,139 - - 51,139 2601 2,691
GRAND TOTAL 704,269 - - 704,269 638,291 - 11,410 649,701 54,568 65,979
Previous Year 704,269 - - 704,269 624,368 - 13,922 638,291 65,978 79,901

I U
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SCHEDULE 5: INVESTMENTS

Long Term Investments

Unguoted

50,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each in

SBEC Investments Limited (Subsidiary Company)
(fully paid) : .

Current Investments

(Quoted. Trade) .
.44,65,962 Equity Shares of Rs. 10+ each in

SBEC Sugar Limited (fully paid) @ Rs 10/- per share
l_ess : Provision for Dimuniation

1,10,73,168 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each in
SBEC Sugar Limited (fully paid) @ Rs 4.15 per share

TOTAL
Market value of quoted investments *

(Based on closing rate of Rs. 14.00 at BSE on 31.03.2010

Previous year @ Rs. 8.00 per share}

44,659,620
8,931,924

SCHEDULE 6: CURRENT ASSETS, LOANS & ADVANCES

A.  Sundry Debtors
{(Unsecured,Considered Good)

a}  Debts Outstanding for a period exceeding Six Months

Less: provision for doublful debts

" by OtherDebts
TOTAL (A)
B. Cash & Bank Balances
a) Cash/Stampsin hand
b) Balances with Scheduled Banks in:
iy  Current Accounts
i)  Fixed Deposits
(Pledged with Sales Tax Authorities)
TOTAL (B) :
C. Loans & Advances
{Unsecured,Considered Good)

a} Advances recoverable in cash orin kind or

for value to be received -
Less: provision for doubtful advances

. b) Advance to Subsidiary
¢) Advance income TaxTax refundable
Service Tax Recoverable

TOTAL (C}
TOTAL (A}+(BM(C)

747,75¢

257,500

15

As at

31.03.2010
{Rs)

500,000

35,727,696

45,953,647

82,181,343
: 217,547,820

727,293
469,686
257,407
834,210

1,091,617

567,532

76,996

40,000

684528

2,418,451

2,304,663

113,788

1,005,257

1,119,045

2,895,190

As at

31.03.2009 .
(Rs.)

500,000

44,659,620
8,931,924 35,727,696

45,953,647

82,181,343

124,313,040

727,293
469,886
257,407

2,203,452

2,460,859

869,865

157,285
40,000

1,067,150

10,680,673

' 2,304,663
8,376,010
23113

270,748

8,679,871
12,207,880
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SCHEDULE 7: CURRENT LIABILITIES AND PROVISIONS As at ' : At at
31.03.2010 31.03.2009
_ {(Rs)) _ (Rs.)

A. . Current Liabllities
Sundry Creditors for Goods and Expenses
- Micro, Small & Medium Enterprises Suppliers* - -
- Others : 11,943,423 11,386,292

Other Liabilities: _ 323593 : 268,911
Advance from Customers 15,997,449 3,203,296
—_— T, 4T
TOTAL (A) ) 28,264,465 - - 14,858,499
— N

* The indentification of Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises
Suppliers is based on Managements knowledge of their status.
B, Provisions

For Graluity & Leave Encashment 8,575 -
Fringe Benefit Tax ' - 12,000
Provision for. Taxation - -
TOTAL (B) 8,575 _ 12,000
PR 1L —_—— e

TOTAL (A)+(B) 28,273,040 14,870,499

.

SCHEDULE 8: OTHER INCOME

For the Year For the year
ended 31.03.2010 ended 31.03.2000
{ Rs.) ) {Rs.)
Provision Written Back . ’ - : 2,237,410
Foreign Exchange Fluctuation(net) - -
TOTAL - 2,237,410
. — e
SCHEDULE 9- PAYMENTS TO AND PROVISIONS FOR EMPLOYEES
Salary and Bonus o _ 597,916 441348
Contribution to Provident & Other Fund | 56,408 | 23439
Staff Weifare Expensed o 2,380 8,044
Gratuity - 8,575 , 21,063
Leave Encashment _ - ' 19,586
TOTAL _ 665,259 ) 513,480
———— ———
SCHEDULE 10: ADMINISTRATIVE AND SELLING EXPENSES _
Rent - 118,800
Legal & Professional Charges ' 46,273 142,308
Auditors Remuneration . : _
~Audit Fees ) 44,120 g 44,120
—Tax Audit Fee 11,080 11,236
— Certification Fee o 11,032 . 23,318
Traveling and Conveyance ' 9,345 : 5,430
Communication . 1,100 7387
Repairs & Maintenance ' - - 9,019
Insurance . _ 422 191
Miscellaneous Expenses : 554,262 - 809,138
Reduction in inventory valuation : . - 152,172
Balances written off _ : — ' 7.593

TOTAL - : 677584 _ 1,330,712
- . . ﬁ ﬁ
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SCHEDULE 11:INTEREST AND FINANCIAL CHARGES For the Year Forthe year
: ended 31.03.2010 ended 31.03.2009
(Rs.) (Rs.)

_ Interest 621,679 1,204,827
‘Bank Charges 41,925 28,448
Foreign Exchang Fluctation - 31,729,022

TOTAL ) 663,604 32,962,297

SCHEDULE : 12
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND NOTES TO ACCOUNTS

A.
I

vi.

vii.

vili.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES :
Basis of Accounting

The Accounts of the Company are prepared under the historical cost convention and in accordance with the applicable accounting
standards, except where otherwise stated. For recognition of income and expenses, accrual basis of accounting is being followed.

Revenue Recogniticn

a) Consultancy Contracts/Works Contracts are recognized on percentage of completion methad.

b} Sales are recognized on despatch of goods by the Company 10 its customers. Sales values are |ncluswe of Sales Tax.
Inventory Valuation

Stores, Spare Parts and Components are valued at Cost. For this purpose, cost is ascertained on FIFO basis. Goods purchased for resale
are valued at lower of cost or realizable value. Provision for obsolescence is made on the stocks wherever requwed

Fixed Assets

—  Fixed Assets are stated at cost less aocumuiated depreciation. The Company capitalizes all costs relating to acquisition and installation
of fixed assets.

—  Fixed assets acquired under Hire Purchase Scheme are capitalized at their principal value and interest implicit in the hire rental is
charged off as revenue expense.

— Depreciation on Fixed Assets, except relating to assets given on Lease has been provided at written down value rates prescribed
under Schedule XIV to the Companies Act, 1956.

— Depreciation on Fixed Assets given on Lease is provided at the rates determined on the basis of primary lease pariod of these assets,
or the straight line rates prescribed under Schedule XIV to the Companies Act, 1956, whichever is higher.

Forelgn Currency Transactions :

Foreign curfency transactions during the period are recorded at the rates prevaiiing at the date of transaction. Liabilities payable in foreign
currencies are stated at bank’s T.T. selling rates of exchange except liability payable in Fareign Currencies as on 31.03.2009 are stated at
bank TT selling rate of exchange as on 31.03.2009. The resultant gain or loss, if any is reflected in the Profit & Loss Account, except
exchange difference on liabilities incurred for acquisition of fixed assets which are capitalised. Non-monetary items denominated in foreign
currency are reported at the exchange rate ruling at the date of transaction.

Employee Benefits

a)  Short Term employee benefits are recognized as an expense at the undiscounted amount in the Profit & Loss account of the year in
which the related service is rendered.

b}  Post employment and other long-term employee benefits are recognized as an expense in the Profit & Loss account for the year in
which the employee has rendered services. The expense is recognized at the present value of the amount payable determined using
actuarial valuation techniques. Actuarial gains and losses of the post employment and other long term benefits are charged to the Profit
& Loss account of the year.

Custom Duty
Custom duty on machinery lying in bond and in transit is accounted for at the time of clearance thereof.
Investments

i. Long Term quoted investments are carried at cost. Provision is made for diminution, other than temporary, in the value of such
investments.

i.  Unquoted investments are stated at cost.

ii.  Current investments are valued at carrying value without any adjustment for increase/diminution, if any is accounted at the time of sale
of such investments.

iv. Where long term investments are reclassified as current investments, transfers are made at the lower of cost or carrying amount at
the date of transter. Where investments are reclassified from current to long term, transfers are made at the lower of cost or fair vatus
at the date of transter. Thereafter, the investments are valued at that transfer price less provision for any diminution.
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Xi.

xii.

xill.

-
.

—

Accounting for Taxes
Current Corporate Tax is provided on the results for the year after considering applicable tax rates and law.

Deferred income tax reflects the impact of current year timing differences between taxable income and accounting income for the year ant
reversal of timing differences of eariier years.

Deferred tax is measured based on the tax rates and tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date,

Deferrad Tax Assets are recognised only o the extent there is feasonable certainty that sufficient future taxable income will be available
against which such daferred tax assetls can be realised. :

Miscellaneous Expenditure
Technicians Fees and Expenditure on acquisition of technical know how are written off over a period of five years.
Impairment of Assets

{consolidation of shares).

For the purmpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the period atiributable to equity shareholders ard the
weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period are adjusted for the effects of all dilative potential equity shares.
Provisions and Contingent Liabilities

Y pre.
can be made and it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic bensfits will be required to setle the obligation. Where it
is not probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required or the amount can not be estimated refiably, the
obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability unless the probability of outflow or resources embodying economic benefits is remote,
Possible obligations, whose existence will only be confirmed by the occurrenceor non- occurrence of one or more uncertain future events,
are afso disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the probability of outflow of resources embodying economic benefils is remote.

NOTES TO ACCOUNTS

Contingent liabliities not provided for in respect of :-

Particuiars Current Year Previous Year
(Rs in Lacs) (Rs in Lacs)

Sales Tax Demand 2.55 2.55
Interest on Foreign Currency Loan 128.52@ 145.08@

In terms of agreement dated 14t December 2005 entered with OCcecident Orient Company Limited and subject to approval of the Reserve Bank
of India (RBI), interest of USD 2,81.974/- {Previous Year USD 2,81,974/-) for eariier years is payable by the company on Foreign Currency
Loan of USD 10,04,944. Pending approvai of RBI, this liability is being shown as contingent Hability.,

The Company hotds 100% {Previous year 100%) shares of SBEC Investment Limited.

Balances of Sundry Deblors, Sundry Creditors and Loan and advances in few cases are subject to confirmation and reconciliation.
However in the opinion of the management the differences arising on such reconciliation, if any, are not likely io be materiai.

Liability of Rs.25,42 533/ (USD 55,781.77) (previous year Rs.28,69,973/-) in respect of interest on foreign currency loan has not been
provided. The same will be provided at the time of actual payment.

Reversal of diminution of Current Quoted investment aggregating Rs.89,31,924/- has not been provided. Profit & Loss of such investment
are accounted at the time of sale of such investment. Resulting of such non reversal of diminution the profit for the year and investment are
shown lower by Rs. 89,31,924/- . .

Ditference on exchange rate fluctuation on Foreign Liabilities amounting to Rs.1,64,24,106/- has hot been provided. The fiuctuation in
foreign transaction, if any wili be accountsd for in the year of remittance/final adjustment, Resulting of such non provision the profit for the
year and fiability are shown lower by Rs.1,64,24,105/-.

18
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10. Managers Remuneration included under different heads of expenditure is as follows:

{Rs. In Lacs)

Current Year Previous Year

Salary (includes Gratuity Leave Encashment & Bonus) 3.56 ‘3.65
Contribution to Provident fund 0.21 0.18
Reimbursement of Expenses 0.13 0.22

The above managerial remuneration has been paid from according to section 198 & 309 read with schedule XlIl of the Companies Act, 1956
and as approved by the shareholders under a special resolution.

11, Segment Reporting

The Company operates in a single business and geographical segment and the requirements of Accounting Standard 17 on Segment
Reporting are not relevant.

12. Related Parties Disclosures
1. The names of the Related Parties as certifled by the management are as follows :
a)}) Enterprises Where Control Exists
i. SBEC investments Limited (Subsidiary company)
b)  Substantial Intergst
3 SBEC Sugar Limited
ii. SBEC Systems Limited, United Kingdom
¢) Key Managerial Parsonngl . :
Mr. Anil Jain, Chief Financial Officer (appointed as Manager from 01.06.2009 under Section 269 of the Companies Act, 1956).
Mr. Anil Rustagi has resigned on 22.04.2009 from the office of Manager-cum-Chief Financial Qfficer..

d)  Individual owning, directly or indirectly , an interest in the voting power of the reporting enterprise that gives them control or significant
influence over the enterprise : Mr. Umash K. Modi

e) Relative of individuai owning substantial interest and their Enterprises :

Mrs.Kumkum Modi, Mr.Abhishek Modi, Ms. Meghna Modi , Mrs. Himani Modi Agarwal, Mr.Jayesh Modi , Modi Arts Pvt Ltd.,, Modi Goods
and Retail Services Pvt Ltd., Jai Abhishek Investrents Pvt Lid., Kamakhya Cosmetics & Pharmaceuitical Pvt.Ltd. , Modi Diagnostics Pvt
Lid., Modi Revion PviLtd., Modi Senator {India) Pvt Ltd., First Move Management Services Pvt Ltd. , Revion Lanka Pvt Lid., Swasth
Investrment Pvt Ltd., Umesh Modi Corp Pvt Lid., Modi Omega Pharma (India) Pvt Lid., Modi lllva India Pvt Ltd., A to Z Holding Pvt Lid.,
Longwell investment Pvt Ltd., SBEC Sugar Limited , Bihar Sponge Iron Ltd., Modi Mundipharma Pvt Ltd. , Modiline Travel Service Pvt Ltd.,
Modi Industries Ltd., Morgardshammer India Ltd., Win Medicars Pvt Lid., H.M.Tubes & Containers Pvi Ltd., * Madi Motors Pvt Lid.,
M.G.Mobile India Pvt Ltd.,Modi Gourmet Limited, Chandil Power Ltd.,Revion Trading Bangladesh Pvt. Lid, * SBEC Bio Energy Lid., Meghna
AutoWorks Pvt. Lid. '

* Indicates that during the period , there Is transaction with these relatives and enterprises.
2. Transactions carried out with related parties referred in 1 above, in the ordinary course of business

(Rs. in Lacs)
Nature of Transactions Referred in Referred in Referred in Referred in
1{a) above 1(b) above 1(c) ahove 1(d} above
income
Services Provided — 55.15 — —
(—) (15.44) () =)
Expenses )
Remuneration —_ — 3.90 —
(—) (—) (4.05) (=)
Misc. Expenses — ] — — 1.79,
{(—) (2.19) (—} (2.84)
QOutstandings
Payable — 127.94 0.57 30.61
) (—} {(—) (0.14) . - {30.82h
Receivable —_ — : — : —
- (0.38) (82.62) (—) (=)
Eguity Contribution 5.00 - — _—
{5.00) (—) {(—) : . (—)
13. Earning per Share
Current Year Previous Year
Net Profit / (Loss} (in Rupees) 4,07,652 (39,196,925)
Welghted average number of equity shares during the year 99,95,900 99,95,900

Basic & Diluted Earnings Per Share (in Rupees) 0.04 _ (3.92)
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14,

15.

16.

Deferred Taxation

The Company has' no deferred tax liability. There are deferred tax assets on account of unabsorbed depreciation and carried forward
business losses, which as a matter of prudence have not been recognised.

{a) Current Liabilities include credit balance of Rs. 0.56 lacs (Previous year credit balance Rs 0.14 Lacs in the name of Mr. Anil Rustagi}
in the narne of Mr. Anil Jain appointed as Manager under Section 269 of the Companles Act, 1956,

{b) Cument Liabiliies include Rs. 0.35 Lacs {Previous year ,07 Lacs) in the name of Ms Shivani Chaudhary as Secretaries under Companies Act 1956,
Employee Benefits ) .
The company has adopted Revised AS- 15 ‘Employee Benefits'. In accordance with the transitional provision of revised AS - 15, additional

liability {net of tax) under new method. Contributions to Defined Benefit /Contribution Plan, recognized as expense for the year are as under:

a) Defined Contribution Plan
Current Year "~ Previous Year
Employer’s contribution to Provident Fund (In Rupees) 56,408 23,439
b) Defined Benefit Plan .
The employees’ gratuity fund scheme is a Defined Benefit Plan {DBP). The present value of obligation is determined based on actuarial
valuation using the Projected Unif Credit Method, which recognizes each period of service as giving rise to additional enit of employes
benefit entitlement and measures each unit separately to build up the final obligation.
1.  Reconciliation of opening and closing balances of DBP
‘ Gratuity For The
Year Ended 31.03.2010
DBF at the beginning of the year _ . Ni
Interest Cost L]
Current Service Cost 8,575
Benefits Paid ' S : Ni
Actuarial (gain)/loss : Nil
DBP at the end of the year ' ' _ 8,575
2. Reconciliatlon of opening and closing balances of Fair Value of Plan Assets
Fair value of plan assets as at the beginning of the year Nil
Expected Retum Ni
Actuarial (gain)/loss Nil
Contribution by Employer Nl
Benefits Paid Nl
Settlament cost
Fair value of plan assets as at the end of the year . Ni
Actual return on plan assets _ Ne
3. Reconcillation of amount recognized in Balance Sheet
Fair Value of Plan Assets Nit
Present vaiue of obligation : ' 8,575
Netasset/{liability) recognized in the Balance Sheet ' 8,575
4.  Expense Recognized during the perlod in Profit & Loss Alc.
Interest Cost ) Ni
Current S_ervice Cost 8,575
Expected return on plan' assets . Nil
Net Actuarial {gain)/ loss recognized during the pariod Nil
Expenses recognized in the statement of Profit & Loss _ _ : 8,575
5.  Actual Return on Plan Assetls

Expected Return on Ptan Assets
Actuarial {gain)/ loss
Actual return on plan assets

&€&

20
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6. Principal Actuarial Assumptions

Gratuity For the Year -2010
1994-96 duly modified

Montality Table {LIC)

Discount rate as at 31st December, 2009 ) 7.50%
Future Salary Increase 5.00%
Expected rate of return on plan assets ’ Ni
Retirement Age 60 years
Withdrawal Rates
Upto 30 years 3.00 %
Upto 44 years 2.00 %
Above 44 years ' 1.00 %

Disclosure in respact of previous four annual periods as required by Revised AS-15 ‘Employee Benefits' is not presented as the management
considers It impracticable in the absence of requisite information

No Gratuity Liability exist in the previous year.
17. - Additional infermation pursuant to provisions of Part Nl of Schedule VI to the Companies Act, 1956 (to the extent applicable) :
a}) Stock, Purchases and Sales of Goods traded in:

{Rs in Lacs)
Description - Opening Stock Purchases Sales Obsolete Closing stock

Value Gty. Value Qty. Value Qty. Value Qty. Vaiue

Industrial Machinery
& Components - — — — — — — - - —
(—) (1.51) (—) (=) (=) {(—) (—) (1.51) (=) (—)

Note: 1.  Closing stock valuation taken as ceriified by the management and relied upon by the auditor, being a technical matter.
2. Since there are various types of goods and components which are dissimilar in nature, i is not practicable to disclose quantitative

b} EXPENDITURE IN FOREIGN CURRENCY (On cash basis)

Particulars (Rs. In Lacs)
Interest Payment 18.51
(6.76)

€)  EARNINGS IN FOREIGN EXCHANGE Nl
{Nil}

d}  CIF VALUE OF IMPORTS Ni
(Nil)

18. . Previous Year figures are given in brackets and have been regrouped / rearranged wherever required.
Signatures to Schedules 1 1o 12
In terms of our attached report of even date,

- - - $df - | Sd |- & -
for K. K. JAIN & CO. . Vijay. K Medi 8.5. Agarwal G.C. Jain B.K. Lufhra
Chartered Accountants Director Director Director Diractor
Firm Reg. No. 02465N : '
Cdl- : $df- $d) -
R.K. Mittal : Shivani Choudhary Anil Jain
Parther Company Secretary Chief Financial Officer

Membership No. : 95459

Place : New Delhi
Date : 12th August, 2010
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Information required as per Part IV of Schedule VI of the Companles Act, 1956
BALANCE SHEET ABSTRACT AND COMPANY'S GENERAL BUSINESS PROFILE

1. Registration Details
Registration No.

Balance Sheet Date

2, Capital Raised during the year (Amount in Rs. Thousands)

Public Issue

Bonus Issue

3 Position of Mobilisation and Deployment of Funds (Amount in Rs. Thousands)

Total Liabilities
Sources of Funds
Paid up Capital
-Secured Loans
Application of Funds
Net Fixed Assets

Net Current Assets

Accumuiated Losses

4, Performance of Company (Amount in Rs Thousands)

Tumover (Including Other Income)
Profit Before Tax

Earning Per share in Rs.

5. Generic names of three Principal Products/Services of the Company (as per monetary term)

Item code No_ {ITC) Code:
84383000

il
Vijay K Modi
Director

Place : New Dslhi
Date : 12th August, 2010

29976 State Code 55
31.03.2010
N Rights Issue NE
Nl Private Placement N
256630 Total Assets 256630
99959 Reserves & Sumplus 19262
— Unsecured Loans 137409
55 Investments 82181
(25378) Miscellaneous Expenditure —
199772
5000 Total Expenditure 4506
482 ~ Profit After Tax 408
0.04 Dividend Rate NE
Product Description
Machinery for Sugar Manufacture
Consultancy Services to
Sugar Industry
gdf - Sd/- gdf —
S.8. Agarwal G.C. Jain B.K. Luthra .
Director Director Director
gd|— -
Shivani Choudhary ~ Anil Jain
Company Secretary Chief Financial Officar

S SR
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 CASHFLOWST. ATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2010

Year Ended
31.03.2010
(Rs. in '000)
A Cash Flow From Operating Actlvities

Net Profit / {Loss) before tax and extra ordinary items 482
Adjustments for :

Add. Interest Expenses 822
Net (Profit) / Loss on Sale of Fixed assets -
Depraciation 11
Provision for Book debts -
Provision for Doubtful Advances -
Provision for Dimuniation of Investment ' -
Reduction in Inventory T -
Exchange Rate Fluctuation -
Balance Written Off -

833

Less:

Provision Written Back -
Exchange Rate Fluctuatuion -
Operating profit befors Working Capital Changes 1,115
Adjustmenis for:

Debtors - 1,369
Trade and other receivables _ 8,038
Trade Payables ’ 13,16
Cash Generated from Operating Activities 22,823
Dirgct Taxes / FBT (Paid) / Refund (564)
Net Change in Working Capital T 227959
Net Cash flow from operating activities 23,374

B.  Cash Flow from Investing Activities
Proceeds from Sale of Fixed Assets -
Net Cash used in investing Activities -

C. Cash Flow from Financing Activities -
Repayment of Borrowings {23,134)
Net Interest (Paid) _ ' (622)
Net Cash Flow from Financing Activities (23,758)

Net Increasei{Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents {A+B+C) _ 5382!

Cash & Cash Equivalents as on 01.04.2009 {Opening balance) 1,087

Cash & Cash Equivalents as on 31.03.2010 (Ciosing baiance) 685

Net increase /(Decrease) as disclosed above (382)

Year Ended
31.03.2009
{Rs. in '000)

(39,185)

1,205
14
8,932
152
31,729

42,040
(2,237)

T (2.237)
618

(2,204)
(272)
4,352
1,876
(312)

1,564
2,182

Note: 1. The above cash flow statement has been prescribed under the indirect method set out In Accounting Standard - 3

“Cash Flow Statement” prescribed by the companies (Accounting Standard) Rules 2006.

2. Cash and cash flow equivatents include FDR As.40,000/- (Prevous year Rs.40,000/-) pledge with Sales Tax Authorlties

which are not availabe for use by the Company.

§d\ - S| Wi
for K. K. JAIN & CO. Vifay K Modi S8.8. Agarwal G.C. Jain
Chartered Accountants Director Director Director
Firm Reg. No. 02465N .
Sl ~ ' &l
R.K. Mittal Shivani Choudhary
Partner : Company Secretary

Membership No. : 95459

Place : New Delhi
Date : 12th August, 2010

§l) -
B.K. Luthra
Director

Sdj-
Anil Jain
Chief Financial Officer
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AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF SBEC SYSTEMS (INDIA) LIMITED ON THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS OF SBEC SYSTEMS (INDIA) LIMITED AND TS SUBSIDIARY.

We have audited the attached Consolidated Balance Sheet of SBEC SYSTEMS (INDIA) LIMITED and its subsidiary as at 31
March 2010, the Consolidated Profit and Loss Account and the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement for the year ended on that date.
These consolidated financial statements are the responsibility of SBEC Systems (India) Limited’s management, Our responsibility
is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit.

We have conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in India. These Standards reguire that we
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financiat
~statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management,
as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our
opinion,

We did not audit the financial statements of subsidiary M/s SBEC Investments Limited for the period ended 31 March 2010
whose financial statements reflect total assets of Bs. 6.24 lacs as at 31 March 2010 and Profit of Rs. 0.26 iacs for the year ended
on that date. These financial statements have been audited by other auditor whose report has been furnished to us, and our
opinion, in so far as it relates to the amounts included in respect of the subsidiary is based solely on the report of other auditor.

We report that the consolidated financial statements have been prepared by the Company in accordance with the requirements
of Accounting standard {(AS) 21 -~ Consoiidated Financial Statements, issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India and
on the basis of separate financial statements of SBEC Systems (India) Limited and its subsidiary included in the consolidated
financial statements.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us the said Balance Sheet, Profit and
Loss Account and Cash Flow Statement read with the Schedules and Notes thereon specifically note no. B-8 regarding Going
concern basis and subject to the consequential impact on the resuit for the period of Note No B (5) regarding non-provision of
expenses related to deputation ch__afg_es of foreign technicians , Note No B(7) regarding Non provision of interest on foreign
currency ioan, Note No. B (8) rega}dlhg non reversal of diminution of current investments and Note No. B (9) regarding non
provision of exchange rate ﬂuct_u_aﬂon'of foreign liabilities give the information required by the Companies Act, 1956, in the
manners so required and a true and fair view:- ‘ '

a)  In the case of the Consoiidated Balance Sheet, of the consolidated state of affairs of SBEC Systems (India) Limited| and its
subsidiary as at 31% March 2010. and

b) Inthe case of the Consolidated Profit and Loss Account of the consolidated results of operation of SBEC Systems (India)
Limited and its subsidiary for the year ended on that date.

'€} In the case of Consolidate Cash Flow Statement of the consolidated cash fiow of SBEC Systems '(India) Limited and its
subsidiary for the year ended on that date.

For K.K.JAIN & COMPANY
Chartered Accountants,
Firm Reg. No.02465N

3] -

(R.K.MITTAL)

Place : New Deihi . Partner
Dated :12.08.2010 Membership No. 95459
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31.03.2010

Schedules As at As at
31.03.2010 31.03.2009
(Rs.) {Rs.)
| SOURCES OF FUNDS
1 SHAREHOLDERS' FUNDS
a) Share Capital 1 99,959,000 99,959,000
b) Reservesand Surplus 2 19,261,774 19,261,774
119,220,774 119,220,774
2  LOANFUNDS 3 )
Unsecured Loans - 137,409,386, 160,543,679
137,409,386 160,543,679
TOTAL 256,630,160 279,764,453
| APPLICATION OF FUNDS '
1 FIXEDASSETS 4
Gross Block ' 704,269 704,269
Lass: Depreciation 649,71 638,201
Net Block 54,568 65,978
2 NVESTMENTS 5 81,681,343 81,681,343
3 CURRENTASSETS,LOANS &ADVANCES 6 :
a) Inventories ' - _
b) Sundry Debtors ’ 1,091,617 2,460,859
¢) Cash&BankBalances 1,272,163 1,655,296
‘d) Loans & Advances 1,155,339 8,688,136
3,519,119 12,804,291
Less : Current Liabilities and Provisions 7 B
.a}) Cument Liabilities 28,272,257 - 14,866,290
b) Provisions 20,425 24,844
, . . 28,292,682 14,850,934
Net Current Assets (24,773,563} (2,086,643)
4 &) MSCELANEQUSEXPENDITURE o 1,979
: (to the extent not written off or adjusted)
b) PROFIT&LOSSACCOUNT 199,667,812 200,101,796
TOTAL 256,630,160 - 279,764,453
ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND '
NOTES TO ACCOUNTS | 12
Schedules 1 to 12 form an intégral part of Accounts
In terms of our attached report of even date
s - sd- $2)-
for K. K. JAIN & CO. Vijay K Modi S.S. Agarwal G.C. Jain B.K. Luthra
Chartered Accountants Director Director Director " Director
Firm Reg: Na. 02465N
- - L)
R.K. Mittal Shivani Choudhary Anil Jain
Partner Company Secretary

Membership No. : 95458

Place : New Defhi
Date : 12th August, 2010

Chief Financial Officer
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CONSOLIDATED PROFIT & LOSS ACCOUNT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31.03.2010

Membership No. : 95459

Place : New Delhi
Date : 12th August, 2010

Schedules For the year For the year
ended 31.03.2010 ended 31.03.2009
: _ (Rs.) _ {Rs.)
1 INCOME
Tumover 5,000,000 2,330,000
Other Income 8 45,935 2,285,167
TOTAL 5,045,935 4,615,167
. BXPENDITURE
Operating Expenses 2,500,000 -
Payments to & Provision for Employees 9 665,258 513,480
Administrativé & Selling Expensas 10 683,112 1,335,474
Interest & Financial Charges 1 663,850 32,962,363
 Provision for Dimuniation of'lnveétmem - 8,031,924
Preliminary Expenses Writien off 1,979 2,010
TOTAL 4,514,200 43,745,251
Puofit/(L.oss} before Depreciation _ 531,735 {39,130,084) .
Depreciation 4 ' 11,410 13,922
Profit/(L.oss) Before Tax 520,325 {39,144,006)
- Income Tax { Adjustment } - _
Fringe Benefit Tax Paid / Provision _ 12,000
Provision for Taxatién 86,341 12,644
Profit / {Loss) After Tax 433,984 (39,168,650)
Add: Balance brought forward {200,101,796) (160,933,146)
Balance Carried forward to Balance Sheet {199,667,812) (200,101,796)
Eaming Per Share (Basic & Dilkited) 0.04 (3.92)
ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND 12
NOTES TO ACCOUNTS
Schedules 1 to 12 form an integral part of Accounts
In terms of our attached report of é_ven date )
| - gl S| : Sdf- $d]—
for K. K. JAIN & COQ. Vijay K Modi S.8. Agarwal G.C. Jain B.K. Luthra’
Chartered Accountants Director Director Director Diractor
. Firm Reg. No. 02465N
|- o) Sdf —
R.K. Mittal Shivani Choudhary Anil Jain
Pariner Company Secretary

Chief Financial Officer
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SCHEDULE 1 : SHARE CAPITAL

AUTHORISED

1,50,00,000 Equity Shares (Previous year 1,50,00,000

equity shares) of Rs. 10/- each

Issued & Subscribed
1,00,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each
(Previous year 1,00,00,000 equity shares)

Paid up

1,00,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each
{Previous year 1,00,00,000 equity shares)
Less : Calls in Arrears

TOTAL

SCHEDULE 2 : RESERVES & SURPLUS
Share Premium Account

As at
31.03.2010
(Rs.)

150,000,000
100,000,000
100,000,000

41,000
99,959,000

19,261,774

TOTAL 19,261,774
SCHEDULE 3 : LOAN FUNDS
Unsecured Loans ‘
a) - Foreign Currency Loan from Overseas Corporate Body 51,704,369
b}  Short Term Credits _
Deffered Payment Credits 51,492,138

Others Supplier Credits
Other Suppfier Credits

26,667,188 78,159,326

" As at
31.03.2009
{Rs.)

150,000,000
100,000,000
100,000,000

41,000
_$9.953.000

19261774
19,261,774

51,704,369

69,855,07¢

30,417,367 100,072,437

8,766,873

c) Interest Accrued & Due on above 7,545,691
TOTAL ) . 137,400,386 160,543,679
S sl —
SCHEDULE 4:FIXED ASSETS
PARTICULARS GROSS BLOCK DEPRECIATION NET BLOCK
Asat Additions during | Ded./sale Asat Ugto Ded./adjust. |  Provided Upto As at As at
¢1.04.2009 the year  |during the year; 31.03.201¢ | 31.03.2008 | duringthe yoar| during the year 31.03.201_0 31.03.201¢! 31.03.2008
Plant and Machinery 17,591 - - 17,591 16,510 - 150 16,860 931 1,081
Furniture & Fixture 632,848 - - 632,848 570,642 - 11,260 '_ 581,902 50,946 62.207
Office Equipments 53,830 - ’ - 53,830 51,139 - _ 51,139 2,691 2,691
GRAND TOTAL 704,269 - - 704,269 638,291 - S 11410 649,701 54,568 65,978
Previous Year 704,269 - _ 704,269 624,369 _ 13,922 638,250 65,978 79,901
SCHEDULE 5 : INVESTMENTS As at As at
-31.032010 31.03.2008
{Rs.) (Rs.)
Current Investments '
{Quoted, Trade) :
44,65,962 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each in 44,659,620 44,659,620
SBEC Sugar Limited {fully paid) @ Rs 10/~ per share
Less : Provision for Dimuniation {8,931,924) {8,931,924)
35,727,696 35,727,686
1,10,73,168 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each in 45,953,647 45,953,647
SBEC Sugar Limited (fully paid) @ Rs 4.15 per share —_— —_—
TOTAL ' 81,681,343 81,681,343
Market value of quoted investments
(Based on closing rate of Rs. 14.00 at BSE on 31.03.2010 217,547,820 124,313,040

Previous year @ Rs. 8.00 per share)
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SCHEDULE 6: CURRENT ASSETS, LOANS & ADVANCES

A.

Inventories (as taken,valued and certified by the management)
Stores, Spares and Components
TOTAL (A)
Sundry Debtors
{Unsecured,Considered Good)
a) Debts Outstanding for a period exceeding Six Months
Less: provision for doubtful debts

b) OtherDebts
TOTAL (B)
Cash & Bank Balances
a) Cash/Stamps in hand
b) Balances with Scheduled Banks in :
iy  Current Accounts
if) Fixed Deposits
{FDR amounting Rs. 40,000/ - Pledged with Sales Tax Authorities)
TOTAL (C)
Loans & Advances
{Unsecured,Considered Good)
a) = Advances recoverable in cash or in kind or
for value to be received

Less: provision for doubtful advances

b}  Advance Income Tax/Tax refundable
TOTAL (D) '
TOTAL (A)+{B}+(C)+(D)

SCHEDULE 7: CURRENT LIABILITIES AND PROVISIONS

A.

Current Liabilities
Sundry Creditors for Goods and Expenses
- Micro, Small & Medium Enterprises Suppliers*
- Others
Other Liabilities
Advance from Customers
TOTAL {A) )
* The indentification of Micro, _Srnall and Medium Enterprises
Suppliers is based on managements knowledge of their status.
Provisions
For Gratuity & Leave Encashment
Fringe Benefit Tax
Provision for Taxation
TOTAL (B)
TOTAL (A)+{B)

As at
31.03.2010
(Rs.)

727,293

469,886
257,407

834,210
1,091,617

567,803

93,769
610,591

1,272,163

2,443,523
2,304,663

- 138,860
1,016,479

1,158,339

3,519,119

11,951,215
323,593

15,997,449
28,272,257

8,575

11,850
20,425
28,292,682

As at
31.03.2009
(Rs.)

727,293

469,886
257,407

2,203,452
2,460,859

870,036

215,877
569,383

1,655,296

10,707,696
2,304,663

T 8,403,033
285,103

~_ 8688136
12,804,291

11,394,083
268,911

- 3,203,296

14,866,290

- 14,890,934
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SCHEDULE 8 : OTHER INCOME

Interest income
Frovision Written Back
TOTAL

For the Year
ended 31.03.2010
Rs.)

45,935

45,935

SCHEDULE 9: PAYMENTS TO AND PROVISIONS FOR EMPLOYEES

Salary and Bonus
Contribution to Provident & Other Funds
Statf Welfare Expenses
Gratuity
Leave Encashment
TOTAL

SCHEDULE 10; ADMINISTRATIVE AND SELLING EXPENSES

Rent
Legal & Professional Charges
Auditors Remuneration

—Audit Fees, Tax Audit, Certification
Travelling and Conveyance
Communication
Repairs & Maintenance
Insurance
Miscellaneous Expenses
Reduction in inventory valuation
Balances written off

TOTAL

SCHEDULE 11 : INTEREST AND FINANCIAL CHARGES

Interest

Bank Charges

Foreigh Exchange Flucatation .
TOTAL

597,916
56,408
2,360
8,575

665,259

!

48,876

68,940

9,345

1,100

554,262

167
683,112

II

621,859
41,991

663,850

I

For the year

ended 31.03.2008
Rs.

47,757

2,237,410 -

22,85,167

441,348
23,439

- 8,044
21,063
19,586
513,480.00

118,800
142,920

_ 81,432
5,430

1,204,827
28,514

' 31,729,022
32,862,363
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SCHEDULE : 12

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND NOTES TO ACCOUNTS OF CONSOLODATED ACCOUNTS
A. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES :

| Basis of Accounting '

The Accounts of the CGompany are prepared .under the historiéal cost convention and in accordance with the applicable accounting
standards, except where atherwise stated. For recognition of income and expenses, accrual basis of accounting is being followed.

i.  Principles of Consolidation

a) The financial statements of the Parent company and the subsidiary company have been consolidated on a line-by-line basis by
adding together the book value of like items of assets, fiabilities, income and expenses, after fully eliminating intra-group balances,
infra group transactions and the unrealised profits. )

b) The financial statements of the Parent company and the subsidiary company have been consolidated using uniform accounting
policies for like fransactions and other events in similar circumstances.

¢} The financial statements of the subsidiary used in consolidation ara drawn up to the same reporting date as of the company i.e. up
to March'2010.

ii. Revenue Recognition

a) Consultancy Contracts/Works Confracts are recognized on percentags of completion method.

b) Saies are recognized on dispatch of goods by the Company to its cusiomers. Sales values are inclusive of Sales Tax.
iti. Inventory Valuation '

Stores, Spare Parts and Components are valued at Gost. For this purpose, cost is ascertained on FIFO basis. Goods purchased for
resale are valued at lower of cost or realizable value. Provision for obsolescence is made on the stocks, wherever required.

V  Fixed Assets

—  Fixed Assets are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation. The Company capitalizes all costs relating to acquisition and
instaliation of fixed assets.

—  Fixed assets acquired under Hire Purchase Scheme are capitalized at their principal value and interest implicit in the hire rental is
charged off as revenue expense.

— Depreciation on Fixed Assets, except relating to assets given on Lease has been provided at written down value rates prescribed
under Schedule X1V to the Companies Act, 1956.

—  Depreciation on Fixed Assets given on Lease is provided at the rates determined on the basis of primary lease period of these
assets, or the straight line rates prescribed under Schedule XIV to the Companies Act, 1956, whichever is higher. i

iv. Foreign Currency Transactions

Foreign cumrency transactions during the period are recorded at the rates prevailing at the date of transaction. Liabilities payable in
foreign currencies are stated at bark's T.T. selling ratas of exchange except liability payable in Foreign Currencies as on 31.03.2009 are

- stated at bank TT selling rate of exchange as on 37.03.2009. The resultant gain or loss, if any is reflected in the Profit & Loss Account,
except exchange difference on liabilities incurred for acquisition of fixed assets which are capitalised. Non-monetary items denominated
in foreign currency are reported at the exchange rate ruling at the date of transaction.

vil. Employee Benefits

a) Shor Term employee benefits are recognized as an expenss at the undiscounted amount in the Profit & Loss account of the year
in which the related service is rendered.

b)  Post employment and other long-term employee benefits are recognized as an expense in the Profit & Loss account for the year in
which the employee has rendered services. The expense is recognized at the present value of the amount payable determined
using actuarial vatuation techniques. Actuarial gains and losses of the post employment and other long term bentfits are charged
to the Profit & Loss account of the year, ' ’

vili. Custom Duty .
Custom duty on machinery lying in bond and in transit is accounted for at the time of clearance thereof.
ix. Investments '

i Long Term quoted investments are carried at cost. Provision is made for diminution, other than temporary, in the value of such
investments. :

i Unquoted investmenis are stated at cost.

iii Current investments are valued at carrying value without any adjustment for increase/diminution if any is accounted at the time of
sale of such investments.

iv  Where long term investments are reclassitied as current investments, transfers are made at the lower of cost or carrying amount
at the date of transfer. Where investments are reclassified from current to long term, transfers are made at the lower of cost or fair
value at the date of transfer. Thereafter, the investments are valued at that transfer price less provision for any diminution.
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Accounting For Taxes
Cutrent Corporate Tax is provided on the results for the year after considering applicable tax rates and law.

Deferrad income tax reflects Ihe impact of current year timing differences between taxable income and accounting income for the year and
reversal of timing differences of earlier years,

xl.  Miscellaneous Expenditure
Technicians Fees and Expenditure on acquisition of technical know how are written off over a period of five years.

xil. Impairment of Assets
The carrying amounts of assets are reviewed at each Balance Sheet date to determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If any
indication exists, the recoverable amount is estimated. An impairment loss is recognised wherever the carrying amount of an asset exceeds
#ts recoverable amount.

xiii. Earning per Share
Basic eamings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity shareholders (after deducting
preterence dividends and attributable taxes) by the weighted average number of equity shares gutstanding during the period
Partly paid equity shares are treated as a fraction of an equity share to the extent that they were enititled to participate in dividends related
to a {ully paid equity share during the reporting period. The weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period are
adjusted for events of bonus issue; bonus slement in a rights issue to existing shareholders; share split; and reverse share split {consolidation
of shares),

For the purpase of caleulating diluted eamingé per share, the net profit or loss for the period attributable 1o equity shareholders and the
weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period are adjusted for the sffects of all dilative potential equity shares.

xiv. Provisions and Contingent Liabilities
Provisions are recognized by present obligations, of uncertain timing or amount, arising as a result of a Past event where a reliable estimate
can be made and it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic bensfits will be required to settle the obligation. Where it
is not probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required or the amount can not be estimatad reliably, the
obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability untess the probability of outflow or resources embodying economic benefits is remote.
Possible obligations, whose existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non- occurrence of one or more uncertain future avents,
are also disclosed as contingent fiabilities unless the probability of outflow of resources embodying economic benefits is remote.

B.  NOTES TO ACCOUNTS FOR CONSOLIDATED ACCOUNTS

1. Contingent liabilities not provided for in respect of :-

Particulars Current Year Previous Year

{As in Lacs) ) (Rs in Lacs)
Sales Tax Demand _ 2.55 ) 2.55
Interest on Foreign Currency Loan 128.52@ ) 145.08@

@  Interms of agreement dated 14™ December 2005 entered with Occident Orient Company Limited and subject to approval of the Reserve Bank
of India (RBI), interest of USD 2,81.974/- (Previous Year USD 2,81,974/-) for earlier years is payable by the company on Foreign Currency
Loan of USD 10,04,944. Pending approval of RBI, this liability is being shown ag contingent liability.

2. The Company holds 100% (Previous year 100%) shares of SBEC Investment Limited,

3. Balances of Sundry Debtors, Sundry Creditors and Loan and advances in few cases are subject to confirmation and reconciliation.
However in the opinion of the management the differences arising on such reconeiliation, if any, are not likely to be material.

4. In the absence of Necessary agreements/approvals, interest on overdue creditsffoans from foreign suppliersenders has not been provided

5. Liability of Rs. 7.66 Lacs {Previous year Rs. 7.66 Lacs) related to deputation charges of foreign technicians has not been provided. The
same will be provided at the time of actua payment.

6.  The accounts of the Company for the year ending 31.03.2010 have been prepared on going concem basis. The management is confident
to revive the business activities in near future depending upan more favourable conditions prevailing in the market bearing unforeseen
circumstances, .

7. Liability of Rs.25,42,533/- (USD 55,781.77) (previous year Fs.28,69,973/-} in respect of interest on foreign currency loan has not been
provided. The same will be provided at the time of actuai payment.

8.  Reversal of diminution of Current Quoted investmant aggregating Rs. 89,31,924/- has not been provided. Profit & Loss of such investment
are accounted at the time of sale of such investment.Resulting of such non reversal of diminution the profit for the year and investment are
shown lower by Rs. 89,31,924/- , o

9. Difference on exchange rate fluctuation on Foreign Liabilities amounting to Rs.1,64,24,106/- has not been provided. The fluctuation in

foreign transaction, if any will be accounted for in the year of remittance/final adjustment. Resulting of such rion provision the profit for the
year and liability are shown lower by Rs.1.64,24,105/-, .
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10. Managers Remuneration included under different heads of expenditure is as follows:

{Rs. In Lakh)

Current Year Previous Year

- Balary (includes Graduity Leave Encashment & Bonus) 3.56 3.65
Contribution to Provident fund 0.29 0.18
Reimbursement of Expenses 0.13 0.22

The above managerial remuneration has been paid from according to section 198 & 309 of the Companies Act, 1956 and as approved by the
shareholders under a special resclution. '

11. Segment Reporting 7
The Company operates in a single business and geographical segment and the requirements of Accounting Standard 17 on Segment
Reporting are not relevant. :
12. Related Parties Disclosures
1.  The names of the Related Parties as certified by the management are as follows :
a} Enterprises Where Control Exists
i SBEC Investments Limiled (Subsidiary company)
b) Substantial Interest
i SBEC Sugar Limited
i. ~ SBEC Syslems Limited, United Kingdom
c) Key Managerial Personnel
Mr. Anit Jain, Chief Financial Officer (appointed as Manager from 01.06.2009 under Section 269 of the Companies Act, 1956).
Mr. Anil Rustagi has resighed on 22.04.2009 from the office of Manager-cum-Chief Financial Officer..
d)  Individual owning, directly or indirectly , an interest in the voting power of the reporting enterprise that gives them control or significant
influence over the enterprise : Mr. Umesh K. Modi
e} Relative of individual owning substantial Interest and their Enterprises :
Mrs.Kurmkum Modi, Mr.Abhishek Modi, Ms. Meghna Modi , Mrs. Himani Modi Agarwal , Mr.Jayesh Medi , Modi Arts Pyt Ltd.,, Modi Goods and
Retail Services Pvt Ltd., Jai Abhishel Investments Pvt Lid., Kamakhya Cosmatics & Pharmacsuitical Pvt.Lid. , '‘Modi Diagnostics Pvt Ltd., Modi
Revion Pvi.Ltd., Modi Senator (india) Pvi Ltd., First Move Management Services Pvt Lid. , Revion Lanka Pvt Ltd., Swasth Investrment Pvt Ltd.,
Umesh Modi Corp Pvi Ltd., Modi Omega Pharma (India) Pvt Ltd., Modi lliva India Pvt Lid., Ato Z Holding Pvt Ltd., Longwell Investmant Pvt Ltd.,
SBEC Sugar Limited , Bihar Sponge Iron Lid., Modi Mundipharma Pvt Ltd. , Modiline Travet Service Pvt Ltd., Modi Industries Ltd., Morgardshammer
India Ltd., Win medicare PviLtd., H.M.Tubes & Containers Pvt Lid., *“Modi Motors Pvt Ltd., M.G.Mobile India Pvt Ltd.,Modi Gourmet Limited,Chandi
Power Pvt. Ltd. Revlon Trading Bangladesh Pvt. Lid., Meghna Autoworks Pvt. Ltd., Chandil Power Lid., “SBEC Bioenergy Ltd.
* Indicates that during the period , there is transaction with these relatives and enterprises.
2. Transactions carried out with related parties referred in 1 above, in the ordinary course of business
{Rs. in Lacs)
Nature of Transactions Referred in Referred in Referred in Referred in
1(a} above -1(b) above 1(c) above 1(d) above
tncome
Services Provided — 5515 — —
(—) (15.44) {—) (—)
Expenses
Remuneration ) — - 3.90 —
(—) {(—) (4.05) (=)
Misc. Expenses — — — . 1.79
(=) (2.19) {—) (2.84)
Outstandings
Payable — 127.94 0.57 30.61
(—) (—} (0.14) (30.62)
Receivable — — — —
{0.33) (82.62) {(—) (—)
Equity Contribution 5.00 — — —
(5.00) (—) {(—) (—)
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13. Earning per Share

Current Year Previous Year
Net Profit / {Loss) (in Rupees) 4,33,984 {3,91,68,650)
Weighted average number of equity shares during the year 99,95,900 99,95,900.
Basic & Diluted Earnings Per Share (in Rupees) 0.04 (3.92)

14. Deferred Taxation

15. (a) Current Liabiiities include credit balance of Rs. 0.56 Lacs {Previous year credit balance Rs 0.14 Lacs in the name of Mr. Anil Rustagi)

() Current Liabilities Inciude Rs. 0.35 Lacs (Previous year .07 Lacs) in the name of Ms. Shivani Chaudhary as Secretaries
under Companies Act 1956,
16. Employee Benefits
The company has adopted Revised AS- 15 ‘Employee Benefits', In accordance with the transitional provision of revised AS - 15,
additional liability (net of tax) under new method. Contributions to Defined Benefit /Contribution Plan, recognized as expense
tor the year are as under:
4) Defined Contribution Plan

Current Year - Previous Year

Employer’s contribution to Provident Fund (in Rupees) 56,408 23,439

b} Defined Benefit Plan
The employees’ gratuity fund scheme is a Defined Benefit Plan (DBP). The present value of obfigation is determined based on actuarial
valuation using the Projected Unit Credit Method, which recognizes each period of service as giving rise 1o additional unit of employee
benefit entitiement and measures each unit separately to build up the final obligation.

1. Reconciliation of opening and closing balances of DBP

Gratuity For The
Year Ended 31.03.2010

DBP at the beginning of the year Nil
Interest Coat . . Ni
Current Service Cost ) 8,575
Benefits Paid N
Actuarial (gain)/loss Ni
DBP at the end of the year 8,575
2. Reconciliation of opening and closing balances of Fair Value of Plan Assets
Fair vaiue of plan assets as at the beginning of the year Ni

Expected Return

Actuarial (gain)/loss Nil
Contribution by Employer NA
Benefits Paid Ni
Settlement cost

Fair value of plan assets as at the end of the year Nil
Actual return on plan assets ' Ni
3. Reconciliation of amount recognized in Balance Sheet ]
Fair Value of Plan Assets ) . . . Nil
Present value of obligation - 8,575
Netasset/(iiability) recognized in the Balance Shest 8,575
4. Expense Recognized during the peried in Profit & Loss A/c. )
Interest Cost Ni
Current Service Cost . 8,575
Expected return on plan assets Nil
Net Actuarial (gain)/ loss recognized during the period Nil
Expenses recognized in the statement of Profit & Loss 8,575
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5. Actual Return on Plan Asseis
Expected Return on Plan Assets
Actuarial (gain)/ loss
Actuai return on plan assets

£6 %

6. Principal Actuarial Assumptions

Gratuity For the Year -2010
1994-96 duly modified

Mortality Table (LIC)

Discount rate as at 31st December, 2009 7.50%
Future Salary Increase 5.00%
Expected rate of return on plan assets 7 Nil
Retirement Age 60 years
Withdrawal Rates
Upto 30 years 3.00 %
Upto 44 years 2.00 %
Above 44 years 1.00 %

The estimates of rate of escalation in salary considered in actuarial valuation, takes into account inflation, seniority, promotion and other
relevant factors including supply and demand in the employment market, The actuary certifies the above information.

Disclosure in respect of previous four annual periods as required by Revised AS-15 ‘Employee Benefits’ is not presented as the management
considers it impracticable in the absence of requisite information .

No Gratuity Liability exist in the previous year.
17.  Additional Information pursuant to provisions of Part Il of Schedule VI to the Companies Acl, 1956 (lo the extent applicable) :
a) Stock, Purchases and Sales o! Goods traded in:

(Rs in Lacs)
Description Opening Stock ' Purchases Sales Obsolete Closing stock

Qty. Value Qty. Value Qty. Value Oty. Value Qty. Vaiue

Industrial Machinery
& Components T - —_

(—) (1.51) = - =) (—) {(—) (—) (1.51) = )
Note: 1. Closing stock valuation taken as certified by the management and relied upon by the auditor, being a technical matter.
2. Since there are various types of goods and components which are dissimiiar in nature, it is not practicable to disclose guantitative

infarmation in respect thereof.
b) EXPENDITURE IN FOREIGN CURRENCY (On cash basis)

Particulars {Rs. in Lacs)
Interest Payment 18.51
{6.76)

c) EARNINGS IN FOREIGN EXCHANGE N
{Ni)

d}  CIF VALUE OF IMPORTS Nil
(Nl

18. Previous Year figures are given in brackets and have been regrouped / rearranged wherever required.
Signatures to Schedules 1 to 12
In terms of our attached report of even date,

Sdj - Ld| - S| - S f-

for K. K. JAIN & CO. Vijay K‘Modi S.5. Agarwal G.C. Jain - B.K. Luthra
Charterad Accountants Director Director Director Director
Firm Reg. No. 02465N : _

'§J )~ [ L— KT
R.K. Mittai Shivani Choudhary Anil Jain
Partner Company Secretary Chief Financial Officer

Membership No. : 95459

Place : New Delhi
Date : 12th August, 2010
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2010 -
Year Ended Year Ended
31.03.2010 31,03.2009
(Rs. in '000) (Rs. in '000)

A. Cash Flow From Operating Activities
Net Profit / (Loss) before tax and extra ordinary items 520 (39,144)
Adjustments for : -

Add. Inerest Expenses — 1,205
Net (Profit) / Loss on Sale of Fixed assets 622 -
Depreciation — 14
Provision for Book debts 1 -
Provision for Doubtiul Advances - -
Provision for Demuniuation of investment - 8,932
Reduction in Inventory - 152
Exchange Rate Fluctuatuion — 31,729
Prefiminary Expenses 2 2
Balance Written Off — 8

635 42,043
Less:
Provision Written Back ) —— (2.237)
Interest Income (46) (48)
Exchange Rate Fluctuatuion — -

{46) {2.285)
Operating profit before Working Capital Changes 1,109 614
Adjustments for: :
Debtors 1,368 {2.204)
Trade and cther receivables 8,043 {272)
Trade Payables _ 13,383 4,359
Cash Generated from Operating Activities 22,795 1,883
Direct Taxes / FBT (Paid) / Refund {576) (325)
Net Change in Working Capital 22,219 1,558
Net Cash flow from operating activities 23,328 2172

B.  Cash Flow from Investing Activities -
Proceeds from Sale of Fixed Assets - o~
Net Cash used in Investing Activitles — -

C. Cash Flow from Financing Activities
Interest Received 46 54
Repayment of Borrowings (23,134) (1,531)
Net Interest {Paid) (622) (721)
Net Cash Flow from Financing Activities (23.710) (2,198)

Net Increase/(Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents {A+B+C) 382 (26)

Cash & Cash Equivalents as on 01.04.2009 (Opening balance) 1,655 1,655

Cash & Cash Equivalents as on 31.03.2010 (Ciosing balance) 1,272 1,272

Net Increase /(Decrease) as disclosed above (382} (26)

Note: 1. The above cash flow statement has been prescribed under the indirect method set out in Accounting Standard - 3
“Cash Flow Statement"” prescribed by the companies (Accounting Standard) Rules 2006,

2. Cash and cash fiow equivalents include FDR Rs.40,000/- (Prevous year Rs.40,000/-) Pledge with Sales Tax Authorities

which are not availabe for use by the Company. .
- JI" SJ!" \SJ’ -
for K. K. JAIN & CO. Vijaf%lModi 5.8 Agarwal G.C. Jain ‘B.K. Luthra
Chartered Accountants Director Director Director . Diractor
Firm Reg. No. 02465N
R.K. Mittal Shivani Choudhary Anil Jain
Partner Company Secretary Chief Firancial Officer

Membership No. : 95459

Place : New Dethi
Date : 12th August, 2010
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SBEC INVESTMENTS LIMITED

DIRECTORS’ REPORT
Dear Shareholders,

The Directors of your Company herewith present the 13th Annual Report
together with the audited accounts of the Company for the year ended
31st March 2010.

OPERATIONS

The Cbmpany has yet 10 start the business activity.

FIXED DEPOSIT

The Company has nol accepted any fixed deposits from the public.
DIRECTORS

Mr. R.S. Rustagi, Director will retire by rotation at the ensuing Annual
General Meeting and being eligible offers himself for re-appointment .

AUDITORS

M/s. Sarat Jain 8 Associates, Charterad Accountants (Firm Registration
Ne. 014793C), be appointed as Statutory Auditors of the Company and
to hold office from the conclusion of this Annual General Meeting till the
conclusion of the next Annual General Mesting.

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES

No person was employed during the period; as such particulars of the
employees under Section 217(2A) of the Companigs Act, 1956 are not
annexed. .

PARTICULARS OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY & FOREIGN EXCHANGE

Since there has been no manufacturing activity, the particulars of
conservation of energy and technology absorption are not required to
be given,

The Company had no foreign exchange earning or oulgo during the
period under review.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT UNDER SECTION 217

As required under section 217(2AA) of the Companiss Act 1958, your
Diractors state:

1. That in the preparation of the Annual Accounts, the applicable
accounling standards had been followed along with proper
explanation relating to material departures;

2. That the Company has selected such accounting policies and
applied them consistently and made judgments and estimates that
are reasonable and prudent so as to give true and fair view of
affairs of the Company at the end of the financial year and of the
profit or loss of the company for that period;

3. That proper & sufficient care has been taken for maintenance of
adequate Accounting records in accordance with the provisions
of this Act for safequarding the assets of the Company and for
preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

4. That the Annual Accounts are prepared on a going concern basis;

On Behalf of the Board of Directors
For SBEC INVESTMENTS LIMITED
Q-
R.S. Rustagi
Chairman
Place: New Delhi
Date: 12th August, 2010

SBEC INVESTMENTS LIMITED

AUDITORS’ REPORT

TO THE MEMBERS OF SBEC INVESTMENTS LIMITED ON THE
ACCOUNTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 315" MARCH 2010

We have conducted the attached Balance Sheet of SBEC INVESTMENTS
LIMITED as at 31* March 2010 These financial statements are the
responsibility of the Company’s management. Qur responsibility is to
express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit.

1. We have conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards
generally acceptedin India. These Standards require that we plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement.
An audit includes examining, on test basis, evidence supporting
the amount and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit
also includes assessing the accounting principles used and
significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating
the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our
audit provides a reasonabie basis for our opinion.

2. Since the Company has not obtained the certificate for
Commencement of Business from the Registrar of Companies, the
Companies (Auditors’ Report) Order, 2003 issued by Gowt. of India
is not yet applicable.

3. Further, we report that :

L We have obtained all the information and explanations, which
to the best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for
the purpose of our audit.

. In our opinion, proper books of accounts, as required by
law, have been kept by the Company, so far as appears
from our examination of these books.

R The Balance Sheet, dealt with by this report are in agreement
with the books of account and in our opinion comply with the
applicable Mandatory Accounting Standard referred to in
Section 211(3C) of the Companies Act, 1956. Since the
Company has not commenced its business as explained in
Para 2 above.

V. On the basis of written representations received from
Directors of the Company as on 31.03.2010 and taken on
record by the Board of Directors, we report that none of the
Directors is disqualified from being appointed as Directors in
terms of Section 274(1)(g) of the Companies Act, 1956,

V. Inouropinion and to the best of our information and according
to the explanations given to us, the said accounts read
together with Accounting Policies give the information required
by the Companies Act, 1956 in the manner sg required and
give a true and fair view in the case of Balance Sheet, of the
state of affairs of the Company as at 315 March’2010

For Sarat Jain & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Reg. No. 014793C
S|~
(Sarat Jain)
Proprietor
Membership No.080216

Place : New Delhi .
Date :12th August, 2010
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SBEC SBEC SYSTEMS (INDIA} LIMITED
SBEC INVESTMENTS LIMITED .
BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31ST MARCH, 2010
As at . As at
31.03.2010 31.03.2009
(Rs) . ( Rs.)
LIABILITIES
Share Capital
Authotised :
50,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- Each
{Previous year 50,000 Equity shares of Rs. 10/- each) 500,000 500,000
Issued, Subscribed and Paid Up 500,000 500,000
50,000 Equity Share of Rs. 10/~ Each Fully paid up ' '
(All shares are held by SBEC Systems {India) Limited, the holding company)
Reserve & Surplus )
As at 1.04.2008 77,955 49,680
Add : Profit for the year transferred from Profit & Loss Ae. 26,182 104,137 _ 28,275 77,955
Current Liabilities and Provisions
a} Current Liabilities
Due to Promotors - 33,113
Sundry Creditors 7,791 7,791
b) Provisions
Provision for taxation 12,000 12,644
TOTAL 623,928 631,503
ASSETS )
Current Assets, Loans & Advances
Cash in Hand 270 170
Bank Balances (With Scheduled Bank) — '
— In Current Account 16,773 58,693
— In Fixed Deposit 570,591 529,383
Income Tax Refund Receivable 11,222 14,355
interest accrued & due on FDR 25,b72 27,023
Miscellansous Expendityre
{To the Extent not Written off or Adfusted) .
Preliminary Expenses C— : : 1,979
TOTAL 623,928 . 631,503
Significant Accounting Policies and m
Notes to Accounts as per Sch edule *A” As per our report of even date annexed
For Sarat Jaln & Assoclates,
Chartered Accountants
Firm Reg. No. : 014793C
Sdl- Sd ) i)~
. RK. Tayal R.S. Rustagi (Sarat Jain)
Director . Director Proprietor

Membership No. 80216
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SBEC INVESTMENTS LIMITED
PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2010

INCOME
Interest Income |
EXPENDITURE
Legat& Professional Expenses
Filing Fee
Bank Charges
Audit Fee
Amount Written off.
Preliminary Expenses Written Off -
Total Expenditure
Profit before tax
Provision for Taxation Current Year
Income Tax Previous Year

Profit after Tax carried over 1o Balance Sheet

Significant Accounting Policies Anq

Notes to Accounts As Per Schedufe "A"

Sdf - ' - Qe j—

R.K. Tayal : - R.S. Rustagi
Director L Director

Place : New Dglhi
Dated : 12th August, 2010

For the Year For the Year
ended 31.03.2010 ended 31.03.2009
(Rs.) { Rs.)

45,935 47,757

1,103 612

1,500 —

66 - 66

2,758 | 2,758

167 1,392

1,979 2,010

7,573 - 6,838

38,362 ‘ 40,919
12,000 12,644

180 | _ —

26,182 28,275

As per our report of evan date annaxed

For Sarat Jain & Associates,
Chartered Ag;,ountants
Firm Reg. No.: 014793C
R A
(Sarat Jain)
Proprietor
Membership No. 80216
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SCHEDULE "A"

ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS:

{Annexed to and Forming part of the Accounts for the year ended on
31st March, 2010)

. Signfleant Accounting Policies
A) System of Accourting:

i} The accounts have been prepared using historical cost
convention and on the basis of Going Concsrn.

i} The Company has adopted the accrual basis for
maintenance of Accounts as required by the Companies
Act, 1958,

B. Contigencies and events occuting after the Balance Sheet
date:

Events.occuring after the date of Balance Sheet are
considered upto the date of adoption of the accounts,
wherever materia|.

I. Notes To The Accounts
Previous Year -

i) Contigent Liabilites : Nil (il

i) Additional information asg required under Schedule VI of the
Companies Act, 1956 - Not Applicabie

lii) - Figures of the Previous Year have been regrouped/ rearranged
wherever necessary.

As per our report of even date annexed

For Sarat Jain & Associates,
Charterad Accountants
Firm Reg. No. : 014793C

o]~ L3f S -
R.K. Tayal R.S. Rustagi (Sarat Jain)
Director Director Proprietor

Membership No. 80216
Place : New Delhi
Dated : 12th August, 2010

BALANCE SHEET ABSTRACT AND COMPANY'S
GENERAL BUSINESS PROFILE

. Registration Detalls
Registration No.
Balance Sheet Date

IIl. Capital Raised During The Year (Rs. in thousand)
Public Issue :

Right Issue
Bonus Issue
Private Placement :

. Position of Moblilisation and Deployment of Funds

(Rs. In thousanu) '

55-81903
31.03.2010

€ &2 &

Total Liabilities 624
Total Assets 624
Sources of Funds
Paid up Capital 500
Reserve and Surpius 104
Secured Loans ' : Ni
Unsecured Loans : Ni
Current Liabilities : 20
Application of Funds
Net Fixed Assets : : Nd
investments : Nl
Current Assets : 624
Miscellaneous Expanditure . : 0
Accumulated Losses : 0
V. Performance of the Company
{As. in thousands)
Turnover : 46
Total Expenditure : 8
Profit / {LLoss) : 38
Profit after tax : 26
Eaming per Share As. 0.53
Dividend o Nl
V. Generic Names of three principal Not Applicable

Product/services of the company

As per our report of even date annexed

For Sarat Jain & Assoclates,
Chantered Accountants
Firm Reg. No. : 014793¢

Lol Sdi & [~
R.K. Tayal R.S. Rustagi {Sarat Jain)
Director Director Proprietor

Membaership No. 80216
Place : New Delhi
Dated : 12th August, 2010
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